BIDDING DOCUMENT FOR INSTALLATION OF IP PHONES AND NETWORKING



DUNGSAM CEMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

INTERNATIONAL COMPETITIVE BIDDING

DATE: 21 March, 2024

Officiating General Manager (CSD)

Mr.Loty Jengpo
Head, PRIMID

Dungsam Cement Corporation Ltd

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION I – INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERs	5
SECTION II – BID DATA SHEET	28
SECTION III – BIDDING FORMS	32
Form 1: Bid Security (Bank Guarantee)	33
Form 2: Integrity Pact Statement	35
Form 3: Bidder's Information Form	38
Form 4: Power of Attorney	40
Form 5: Deviation Schedule (if applicable)	42
Form 6: Bid Submission Form	43
Form 7: Bill of Quantities	45
Form 8: Price Adjustment Data	46
SECTION IV – GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT	47
SECTION V – SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT	94
SECTION VI – TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS	98
1. Scope of Works Error! Book	mark not defined.
2. Technical Specifications and Guaranteed Technical Particulars Error! Book	mark not defined.
3. Drawings Error! Book	mark not defined.
SECTION VII - CONTRACT FORMS	102
Form 1: Notification of Award	103
Form 2: Contract Agreement	104
Form 3: Bank Guarantee for Contract Performance Security	106
Form 4: Bank Guarantee for Advance Payment	108





Date: 21-03-2024

Detailed Notice Inviting Tender

Dungsam Cement Corporation Limited

Corporate Service Department

Nganglam: Pemagatshel

Notice Inviting Tenders (NIT)

(Domestic Competitive Bidding)

For

Installation of IP Phones & Networking

NIT No: DCCL/Com/Proc/05/2024/447

1.0 Corporate Service Department, DCCL invites sealed Bids from eligible all international & national Bidders meeting the qualification requirements for the construction of Installation of IP Phones & Networking as per the scope of work mentioned hereinafter.

2.0 The brief scope of work is as under:
Installation of IP Phones & Networking to all the DCCL offices.

3.0 Detailed specifications, scope of Work and terms and conditions are given in the Bidding Documents, which are available at the address given below as per the following schedule:

NIT No and name of the	:	Bidding Documents for Installation of IP Phones &
package		Networking
Estimated Cost of Works	:	BTN
Bidding Documents shall	:	From March 21, 2024 to April 21, 2024
be available from		
Bid receipt date & time	:	Up to April 21, 2024 by 3:00PM
Pre-bid meeting (if	:	Not Applicable
applicable)		
Bid opening date & time	:	On April 21, 2024 at 3:30PM at DCCL Conference Hall
Bidding Documents shall	:	Procurement Office, DCCL or Company Website
be available at		www.dccl.bt

- 4.0 Interested Bidders may obtain the bidding documents from nodal officer or DCCL Website www.dccl.bt
- 5.0 Bidders downloading the documents from the website should register themselves by intimating the nodal officer of Employer, before the deadline for submission of Bid, its intention to submit the Bid on the basis of downloaded documents.
- 6.0 Issuance of bidding documents shall not automatically construe that the Bidder fulfills the Qualifying Requirements, which shall be determined during Bid evaluation based on





DUNGSAM CEMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

- data/documents submitted by the Bidder. Bids shall be submitted at the address given below and shall be opened in the presence of Bidder's representatives who choose to attend.
- 7.0 All Bids must be accompanied by Bid security for an amount of BTN 60,000 (Sixty Thousand) in the form of Bank Guarantee/ Demand Draft /Cash Warrant, issued/enforceable by any financial institutions in Bhutan, and valid till June 24, 2024. Bids not accompanied with an acceptable Bid security shall be rejected by Employer and in such cases, Bids shall be returned to the Bidders unopened.
- 8.0 Qualification Requirement for Bidders shall be as specified in the Bidding Data Sheet (BDS).
- 9.0 Bidding Documents are not transferrable.
- 10.0 Employer reserves the right to accept or reject any Bid partly or fully or cancel the bidding process without assigning any reasons thereof and in such case no Bidder shall have any claim arising out of such action of Employer.
- 11.0 The Bidders shall be required to complete the Works within the time for completion as specified in the SCC.
- 12.0 Address for Communication (Bid Submission):

Loday Zangpo

Head, Procurement and Material Management Division

Dungsam Cement Corporation Limited

Email: loday.zangpo601@dccl.bt

Telephone No #97577417046





SECTION I – INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS





A. Introduction

1. Definitions and Interpretations

1.1. Unless otherwise stated, throughout this Bidding Document definitions and interpretations shall be as prescribed in the General Conditions of Contract.

2. Scope of Works

2.1. The scope of Works shall be as specified in Section VI, Technical Specifications or BDS. The name and identification number of the Contract is provided in the NIT.

3. Fraud and Corruption

- 3.1. As per the RGoB policy, Employer requires that the Bidders, Contractors and their Subcontractors shall observe the highest standards of ethics during the bidding process and execution of Contracts. The terms "Corrupt practice", "Fraudulent practice", "Collusive practice", "Coercive practice" and "Obstructive practice" shall be as per definition in GCC 1.6. In pursuance of this policy, the Employer:
 - a) will reject a Bid for award if it determines that the Bidder recommended for award has, directly or through an agent, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive or obstructive practices in competing for the Contract in question;
 - b) will sanction a firm or individual, including declaring them ineligible, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time, to be awarded a contract if it at any time determines that they have, directly or through an agent, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive or obstructive practices in competing for, or in executing contract;
 - c) will have the right to require that a provision be included in Bidding Documents and in contracts, requiring Bidders, Suppliers, Contractors and their Subcontractors to permit the Employer, any organization or person appointed by the Employer and/or any relevant RGoB agency to inspect their accounts and records and other documents relating to the Bid submission and contract performance and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Employer;
 - d) requires that Bidders, as a condition of admission to eligibility, execute and attach to their bids an Integrity Pact Statement in the form provided in Section III, Bidding Forms. Failure to provide a duly executed Integrity Pact Statement may result in disqualification of the Bid; and
 - e) will report any case of corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive or obstructive practice to the relevant RGoB agencies, including but not limited to the Anti-Corruption Commission (ACC) of Bhutan, for necessary action in accordance with the statutes and provisions of the relevant Agency.
- 3.2. Furthermore, the Bidders shall be aware of the provisions stated in GCC 1.6.





4. Eligible Bidders

- 4.1. A Bidder shall be an eligible individual, firm, incorporated legal entity or a Joint Venture of such entities under an existing agreement. A Bidder, and all parties constituting the Bidder, shall have the nationality of any country, subject to the restrictions specified in ITB. 4. A Bidder shall be deemed to have the nationality of a country if the Bidder is constituted, incorporated, or registered and operates in conformity with the provisions of the laws of that country. This criterion shall also apply to the determination of the nationality of the proposed subcontractors for any part of the Contract.
- 4.2. A Bidder shall not have conflict of interest. Any Bidder, found to have a conflict of interest, shall be disqualified. Bidders may be considered to have a conflict of interest with one or more parties in the same bidding process if they:
 - a) or any of their affiliates are associated, or have been associated in the past, to provide consulting services for the preparation of the design, specifications and/or other documents to be used for the procurement of the Works to be executed pursuant to these Bidding Documents, or in any other way provided the consulting services in any aspect of the preparatory stages leading up to the issue of these bidding documents or hired/ proposed to be hired by Employer as Project Manager for the Contract implementation;
 - b) submit more than one Bid in this bidding process either individually or as a partner in the Joint Venture, except for alternative offers permitted under ITB. 15. Participation by a Bidder in more than one Bid shall result in rejection of all Bids in which the Bidder has participated. However, this does not limit the participation of a Bidder as a Subcontractor in another Bid or more than one Bid;
 - c) employ or otherwise engage, either directly or through any of their Affiliates, a Employer employee, spouse or any of the dependent parent of a Employer employee;
 - d) have a relationship with each other, directly or through common third parties, that puts them in a position to have access to information about or influence on the Bid of another Bidder, or influence the decisions of Employer regarding this bidding process; or
 - e) have the same legal authorized representative for purposes of this Bid.
- 4.3. An Employer formed by the merger of two or more companies or divisions of such companies engaged in execution of Works as specified in the Bidding Documents can also participate provided the constituent companies or divisions before merger individually or jointly meet the stipulated qualification requirements fully.
- 4.4. If so, specified in the BDS, if a foreign/expatriate Bidder, who is currently not doing business within the Kingdom of Bhutan, is awarded the contract, the Bidder may be represented by an agent in the Kingdom of Bhutan. The agent shall be a legal entity, equipped and able to carry out the Contractor's obligations.





- 4.5. Where an agent is permitted to submit the Bid on behalf of the Foreign Bidder, payment of agency commission, if any, to the Foreign Bidder shall only be made in the local currency. The agent and the Foreign Bidder shall not be permitted to submit separate bids in the same bidding process. On the other hand, an agent shall not be allowed to work with and represent more than one party/Bidder.
- 4.6. In case of JVs with any of the Bhutanese Bidder the payment to the Bhutanese member of the JV for the services from within Bhutan shall be in local currency.
- 4.7. The Bidder shall provide such evidence of their continued eligibility satisfactory to the Employer, as the Employer shall reasonably request.

5. Exclusion of Bidders

- 5.1. A Bidder shall be ineligible for participating in this bidding process under the following circumstances:
 - a) The Bidders is insolvent or is in receivership or is a bankrupt or is in the process of being wound up; or has entered into an arrangement with the creditors; or
 - b) The Bidders' affairs are being administered by a court, judicial officer or appointed liquidator; or
 - c) The Bidder has suspended business or is in any analogous situation arising from similar procedures under the laws and regulations of his country of establishment; or
 - d) The Bidder has been found guilty of professional misconduct by any competent authority as per law or any professional body; or
 - e) The Bidder has not fulfilled his obligations with regard to the payment of taxes, social security or other payments due in accordance with the laws of the country in which he is established or of the Kingdom of Bhutan; or
 - f) The Bidder has been declared by Employer or the Anti-Corruption Commission to be ineligible for participation in tenders on account of any fraud and/or corruption in competing or executing a Contract; or
 - g) The Bidder has been debarred/blacklisted from participation in public procurement by any competent authority as per law; or
 - h) As a matter of law or official regulation, the Royal Government of Bhutan (RGoB) prohibits commercial relations with the country of the Bidder. Such exception shall be specified in the BDS.





6. Joint Venture Bids

- 6.1. Bids submitted by a joint venture, if so, permitted in the BDS, formed by a number of legal entities as specified in the BDS subject to the condition that the total number of legal entities shall not exceed three (3) entities, shall comply with the following requirements:
 - a) The Bid shall be signed by an authorized signatory of the joint venture, who has been authorized by all the other members, so that the bid is legally binding on all members;
 - b) One of the partners shall be designated as leader who shall have the authority to conduct all business for and behalf of any and all members of the joint venture. This authorization shall be evidenced by submitting with the bid a power of attorney signed by legally authorized signatories of the other members;
 - c) The leader shall be authorized to receive instructions for and on behalf of any and all members of the Joint Venture and the entire execution of the contract, including payment, shall be done exclusively with the leader;
 - d) All members of the joint venture shall be liable jointly and severally for the execution of the contract in accordance with its terms; and
 - e) A copy of the agreement entered into by the joint venture members as per the format provided in the bidding documents shall be submitted with the Bid. In order for JV to qualify, either the lead partner must meet the minimum technical qualification requirements or can be met jointly by the JV partners, as specified in the BDS.
- 6.2. The financial qualification requirements however may be met jointly by the members of the JV subject to the condition that each member can independently meet at least the minimum financial qualification requirements as specified in the BDS. Failure to comply with this requirement will result in rejection of the Joint Venture's Bid.
- 6.3. A firm can be a member in only one joint venture; bids submitted by joint ventures including the same firm as member in more than one JV in the same bidding process shall be rejected.

7. Responsibility of Bidders

7.1. Employer shall not assume any responsibility regarding information gathered, interpretations or conclusions made by the Bidder or regarding information, interpretations or deductions the Bidder may derive from the data or any report furnished by Employer. Verbal communication or conversation with any employee of Employer either before or after the submission of Bid shall not affect or modify any of the terms or obligations contained herein.





7.2. It shall be the sole responsibility of Bidders to determine and to satisfy themselves by such means as they consider necessary or desirable as to all matters pertaining to this bidding process including in particular all factors that may affect the performance of the Contract in the event of award.

B. The Bidding Documents

8. Contents of Bidding Documents

8.1. The bidding documents include the sections stated below together with any addendum/amendment to be issued in accordance with ITB. 12.

Section I	Instructions to Bidders (ITB)
Section II	Bid Data Sheet (BDS)
Section III	Bidding Forms
Section IV	General Conditions of Contract
Section V	Special Conditions of Contract
Section VI	Technical Specifications
Section VII	Contract Forms

8.2. The Bidder is expected to examine all instructions, forms, terms, conditions, specifications and other information in the bidding documents and shall be deemed to have carefully examined the bidding documents and also to have satisfied himself as to the nature, character and scope of work to be executed. Failure to furnish all information and documents required as per the Bidding Documents or submission of a Bid not substantially responsive to the Bidding Documents in every respect shall be at the Bidder's risk and may result in rejection of his bid.

9. Clarifications on Bidding Documents

- 9.1. The Bidder shall examine the bidding documents thoroughly in all respects and if any conflict, discrepancy, error or omission is observed, the Bidder may request clarification promptly. A prospective Bidder requiring any clarification on the bidding documents may notify Employer in writing by post or e-mail, to the address mentioned in BDS, not later than the date and time specified in BDS.
- 9.2. Employer shall issue clarification(s) as it may think fit in writing by post or e-mail prior to the deadline/ extended deadline for submission of Bids prescribed by Employer. All such clarifications shall form part of the bidding documents and shall accompany the Bidder's bid.
- 9.3. For the information of all Bidders, the clarifications shall also be uploaded on the Employer's and/or relevant website. The Bidders are advised to visit the website of the Employer from time to time in their own interest.
- 9.4. Bidders shall not be allowed to seek any clarification on the bidding documents in person or by telephone or other verbal means. Any queries sent by the Bidders after the date and time notified in the BDS or extended date, if any, shall not be entertained.





DUNGSAM CEMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

- 9.5. Should Employer deem it necessary to amend the bidding documents as a result of a clarification, it shall do so following the procedure under ITB. 12.
- 9.6. Any failure on the part of the Bidder to comply with the provisions under ITB 9 shall not excuse him/her for performing the works in accordance with the contract, in case of award.





10. Site Visit and Familiarization

- 10.1. The Bidder is advised to visit and examine the site and its surroundings where the Works are to be executed and obtain for itself on its own responsibility and risk, all information that may be necessary for preparing the Bid and entering into a Contract for execution of the Works. The costs of visiting the site shall be fully borne by the Bidder. Employer shall facilitate the site visit and Bidder is required to furnish advance intimation of his site visit.
- 10.2. The Bidder shall acquaint himself with the adequacy of local conditions and requirements including the approach roads to the site, adequacy of existing culverts, bridges and roads for the expected traffic, water and power supply, nature of ground and sub-soil conditions, water table level, river regime, river water levels and other details, geological and climatic conditions, local terrain, availability of labour and construction material, communication facilities, utility and labour conditions and shall not claim at any time after submission of the Bid or during the execution of the Contract that there was any lack of understanding with regard to the conditions imposed in the Contract or prevailing at the site.
- 10.3. In their own interest, the Bidders are required to familiarize themselves with the Income Tax Act, prevailing labour laws including laws and regulations governing engagement of labour for employment and deployment at site & other related acts and laws prevalent in the Kingdom of Bhutan. Further, the Bidders are required to comply with these acts/laws and other relevant provisions particularly with reference to the execution of the works.
- 10.4. Foreign Bidders shall familiarize themselves especially with the rules and regulation applicable to the foreign firms for carrying out business in the Kingdom of Bhutan.

11. Pre-Bid Meeting

- 11.1. A pre-bid meeting shall be conducted only if necessary to clarify doubts and concerns of the Bidders prior to submission of bids. The Bidders who have downloaded the bidding documents from the Employer's /relevant website shall attend pre-bid meeting to be held on the date, time and location specified in BDS.
- 11.2. Non-attendance at the pre-bid meeting shall not be a cause for disqualification of Bidders but at the same time shall not entitle them to raise any query at a later date.
- 11.3. Minutes of the pre-bid meeting, including the text of the questions raised without identifying the source, and the responses given together with any responses prepared after the meeting, shall be circulated to all Bidders who have downloaded the bidding documents.
- 11.4. Any modification to the bidding documents that may become necessary as a result of the pre bid meeting shall be made by Employer through the issue of an addendum pursuant to ITB. 12.





12. Amendment of Bidding Documents

- 12.1. At any time prior to the deadline for submission of Bids, Employer may amend the bidding documents by issuing an addendum/ corrigendum. This may be done either on Employer's own initiative or in response to clarification requests from any prospective Bidder.
- 12.2. The addendum/corrigendum shall be sent in writing either by post/ e-mail to all prospective Bidders. For the information of other Bidders, the addendum/amendments/corrigendum shall also be uploaded on the Employer/relevant website.
- 12.3. Employer shall assume that the information contained therein have been taken into account by the Bidder in its Bid and shall bear no responsibility or liability arising out of non-receipt of the same in time or otherwise by the Bidder.
- 12.4. Employer may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for submission of Bids pursuant to ITB. 25.2 to allow prospective Bidders reasonable time to take the addendum into account in preparation of their Bids. It would be in the interest of the Bidders to regularly visit the Employer website for information on any amendment or clarification to the bidding documents. Employer shall in no way be responsible for any ignorance of the Bidder about the amendment to the bidding documents.

C. Preparation and Submission of Bids

13. Cost of Bidding

13.1. The Bidder shall bear all costs, direct or indirect associated with the preparation and submission of his bid (including site visits and attending pre-bid meetings) and Employer in no case shall be responsible or liable for these costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the bidding process.

14. Language of Bid

14.1. The Bid, and all correspondence and documents related to the Bid shall be in English. Supporting documents and printed literature provided by the Bidder related to the Bid shall also be in English and if in any other language, should be translated to English. The English translation shall prevail on the interpretation.

15. Alternative Bids

- 15.1. Alternative bids shall not be considered, unless specifically allowed in the BDS. If so allowed, ITB. 15.1 and ITB. 15.2 shall govern, and the BDS shall specify which of the following options shall be allowed:
 - a) Option One: A Bidder may submit alternative bids with his base bid and Employer shall only consider the alternative bids offered by the Bidder whose bid for the base case was determined to be the lowest-evaluated bid, or





- b) Option Two: A Bidder may submit an alternative bid with or without a bid for the base case. All bids received for the base case, as well as alternative bids meeting the Technical Specifications pursuant to Section VI, shall be evaluated on their own merits.
- 15.2. Alternative bids shall provide all information necessary for a complete evaluation of the alternative by Employer, including design calculations, technical specifications, breakdown of prices, proposed construction methods and other relevant details.

16. Documents Constituting the Bid

- 16.1. The Bid shall comprise the following documents:
 - a) Bid submission forms and Bill of Quantities;
 - b) Bid Security in accordance with ITB. 22;
 - c) Integrity Pact Statement duly executed by the bidder, as per Form: 2 of Section III;
 - d) Relevant bidding forms;
 - e) Power of Attorney;
 - f) Documentary evidences establishing Bidder's Qualification stipulated in BDS;
 - g) Deviations sheet in accordance with bidding Form: 5 of Section III. No deviation, whatsoever, shall be permitted by Employer, to the provisions of the Bidding Documents listed in the BDS;
 - h) Alternative Bids if permitted in the BDS; or
 - i) Any other documents required in the BDS.

17. Bid Submission Forms

- 17.1. The Bidder shall submit the bid using the Bid Submission Form prescribed under Form: 6 of Section III. This form must be completed without any alterations to its text, and no substitutes shall be accepted. All blank spaces shall be filled in with the information requested.
- 17.2. A bid in which the Bid Submission Form is not duly filled, signed and/or sealed by the bidder shall be rejected.

18. Bid Prices and Discounts

- 18.1. The Bidder shall fill in unit rates/ prices for all items of the Works described in the BoQ in figures. The unit rates/ prices quoted in the BoQ shall also be deemed to include any incidentals not shown or specified but reasonably implied or necessary for the proper completion and functioning of the whole specified item of the Works in accordance with the Bidding Documents and shall also deem to include the cost of construction of infrastructural facilities required for execution of the Contract and not included in the Works. The Contract shall be for the whole Works based on the unit rates and prices in the Priced BoQ submitted by the Bidder.
- 18.2. The unit rates/ prices quoted in the BoQ shall be inclusive of all taxes, duties, levies & charges payable in the Kingdom of Bhutan (including those levied on the construction material quarried from land owned by Employer or otherwise), as of thirty (30 days) days prior to the deadline for submission of Bids.





- 18.3. The total price at the bottom of the Priced BoQ shall be indicated both in figures and words.
- 18.4. If rebate/discount is offered, the overall discount in percentage shall be brought out in the Priced BoQ. Conditional rebates/discount, if any, offered by any Bidder shall not be considered during Bid evaluation.
- 18.5. The prices and discounts quoted by the Bidder in the Bid Submission Form and in the Priced BoQ shall conform to the requirements specified below:
 - a) Items for which no rate or price is entered by the Bidder in the Priced BoQ shall not be paid by Employer when executed and shall be deemed covered by the other rates and prices mentioned in the Priced BoQ.

19. Contract Price Adjustment

- 19.1. Prices quoted by the Bidder shall be fixed during the Bidder's performance of the Contract or subject to variation, as specified in the BDS. A Bid submitted with an adjustable price quotation shall be treated as non-responsive and shall be rejected pursuant to ITB. 31 unless adjustable price quotations are permitted.
- 19.2. If, in accordance with the BDS, prices quoted by the Bidder are subject to adjustment during the performance of the Contract:
 - a) The prices quoted by the Bidder shall reflect changes in the cost of labour, material, etc. in accordance with the procedures specified in GCC.12.1
 - b) A Bid submitted with a fixed price quotation when Bids have been invited with price variation, will not be rejected, but the price adjustment will be treated as zero.
 - c) The estimated effect of the price adjustment provision applied over the period of execution of the Contract shall not be taken into consideration in Bid evaluation.
 - d) Employer shall indicate the name, source and origin of indices along with their base values and corresponding coefficients as per SCC.

20. Currencies of Bid

- 20.1. The unit rates and prices shall be quoted by the Bidder in any of the currency (ies) specified in the BDS.
- 20.2. The reference exchange rate (selling rate) prevailing on the day of Bid opening or the immediate preceding date as posted by the Royal Monetary Authority of the Kingdom of Bhutan shall be used for the conversion of prices.
- 20.3. The payment to the Contractor shall be made in the currency of Bid and any banking charges related to payment shall be borne by the Contractor.





21. Period of Validity of Bids

- 21.1. Bids shall remain valid till the date specified in the BDS. A Bid valid for a shorter period shall be liable for rejection by Employer as non-responsive.
- 21.2. In *exceptional* circumstances, prior to the expiry of the Bid validity period, Employer may request Bidders to extend the period of validity of their Bids. The request and the responses shall be made in writing to all the participating Bidders. A Bidder may refuse the request to extend the validity of its Bid without forfeiting its Bid Security. In such a case, the Bid of the Bidder, refusing to extend the validity of its Bid, shall not be considered for evaluation and award. A Bidder granting the request shall be required to extend the validity of their Bid securities correspondingly but shall not be required or permitted to modify its Bid.
- 21.3. The provisions of ITB 22 regarding discharge and forfeiture of Bid Security shall continue to apply during the extended period of Bid validity.

22. Bid Security

- 22.1. The Bidder shall furnish, as part of its Bid, a Bid Security in original form, denominated in the currency and the amount specified in the BDS.
- 22.2. The Bid Security shall at the Bidder's option, be in any forms stipulated in the BDS:
 - a) An unconditional and irrevocable Bank Guarantee as per the form; or
 - b) A Banker's Cheque/ Cash Warrant; or
 - c) A Demand Draft; or
 - d) Cash deposit in the Employer's bank account, only in case of exceptional circumstances.
- 22.3. Bid Security shall be issued by a reputable financial institution enforceable in any Banks in Bhutan;
- 22.4. Bid security shall be in its original form and copies shall not be accepted. Bid Security shall be valid for a period of thirty (30) days beyond the bid validity period, as extended, if applicable, in accordance with ITB. 21.2. Accordingly, the Bid security shall remain valid till the date specified in the BDS;
- 22.5. Any Bid not accompanied by adequate Bid Security shall be rejected by Employer as non-responsive.

22.6. Return of Bid Security:

- a) The Bid Securities of unsuccessful Bidders shall be returned as promptly as possible upon the successful Bidder furnishing the Performance Security pursuant to ITB. 40 and signing the Contract.
- b) In case of single stage two-envelope and two stage mode of tendering, Bid Security of non-responsive Bidders shall be returned immediately after technical evaluation.





- 22.7. The Bid Security shall be forfeited:
 - a) if a Bidder withdraws its Bid as a whole or in part during the Bid validity period; or
 - b) if the Bidder has been found practicing corrupt or fraudulent or collusive or coercive practices during bidding process; or
 - c) If the successful Bidder fails to:
 - i. accept the correction of its Bid Price pursuant to ITB. 32;
 - ii. sign the Contract in accordance with ITB 41; or
 - iii. furnish a Performance Security in accordance with ITB 40.
- 22.8. The Bid Security of a JV/C must be in the name of JV/C that submits the Bid.

23. Signing of Bids

- 23.1. The Bidder shall prepare ONE Original of the documents comprising the Bid as described in ITB Clause 18 and clearly mark it "ORIGINAL". In addition, the Bidder shall submit copies of the Bid, in the number specified in the BDS and clearly mark them "COPY". In the event of any discrepancy between the original and the copies, the original shall prevail.
- 23.2. The original and all copies shall be typed or written in indelible ink and shall be signed by a person/persons duly authorized by the Bidder with official seal as per Form: 4 of Section III. However, any published document submitted along with the Bid shall be signed by the authorized signatory (ies) at least on the first page and last page of such document.
- 23.3. Any interlineations, erasures, overwriting, cutting or alteration shall only be valid if they are initialed by the authorized signatory (ies) to the Bid.

24. Submission of Bids

- 24.1. Each Bidder, including its affiliate, shall be permitted to submit only one Bid against a particular NIT. In case a Bidder and its affiliate have submitted separate Bids against the same NIT, such bids shall be rejected.
- 24.2. Bids shall be delivered by hand, courier or registered post or electronic means so as to reach Employer at the address specified in BDS on or before the date and time mentioned in BDS. Employer shall not be responsible for any delay in receipt of the bid where sent by post or courier.
- 24.3. In case of hand delivery, Bids shall be handed over to the Nodal officer at the address as specified in BDS.





- 24.4. The Bids shall be submitted in envelopes, signed and sealed in the manner stipulated hereunder or as mentioned in the BDS. The outer Envelope shall:
 - a) be marked "CONFIDENTIAL";
 - b) be addressed to the Employer provided in the BDS;
 - c) bear the Tender name and number; and
 - d) provide a warning not to open before the time and date for Bid Opening.
- 24.5. Single-Stage Two Envelope Process:
 - a) The inner Envelope- I shall contain:
 - i. Technical bids and be signed across their seals by the person authorized to sign the Bid on behalf of the Bidder; and
 - ii. Be marked "ORIGINAL", "ALTERNATIVE" (if permitted) and "COPY"
 - b) The inner envelope –II shall contain:
 - i. Financial bids and be signed across their seals by the person authorized to sign Bid on behalf of the Bidder; and
 - ii. Be marked "ORIGINAL", "ALTERNATIVE" (if permitted) and "COPY".
- 24.6. Where bids are invited under the single stage single envelope, both technical and financial bid shall be in one envelope.
- 24.7. In addition to the identification required in ITB. 24.4, the inner envelopes shall indicate the name and address of the bidder, to enable the bid to be returned unopened in case it is declared late pursuant to ITB. 26.
- 24.8. If the outer envelope is not sealed and marked as above, the Employer shall assume no responsibility for the misplacement or premature opening of the bid.
- 24.9. In the two-stage process, bidders shall be advised to submit only the technical bids in the first stage. In the second stage, bidders shall be requested to submit both their technical bids as modified and agreed with the Employer and the financial bids based on the modified technical bids simultaneously in two separate sealed envelopes.
- 24.10. When so specified in the BDS, Bidders shall have the option of submitting their Bids electronically. Bidders submitting Bids electronically shall follow the procedures specified in the BDS.





25. Deadline for Submission of Bids

- 25.1. Bids must be received by Employer in accordance with ITB. 24. In the event of the specified date for submission of Bids being declared a holiday for Employer, the Bids shall be received up to the specified time on the next working day. Such postponement of date shall not have any impact on the other dates specified in the Bidding Documents (i.e., bid validity and validity of bid security).
- 25.2. Employer may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for the submission of Bids/ opening of Bids by issuing an addendum and hosting the same on the website, in which case all rights and obligations of Employer and the Bidders previously subject to the original deadline shall thereafter be subject to the deadline as extended.
- 25.3. In the event of the deadline for submission of Bid extended by Employer, the Bidders who have already submitted their Bids within the original deadline of submission shall have the option to submit their revised Bid in substitution either in full or in part of earlier Bid. In the absence of a revised Bid, the original Bid shall be considered for opening and subsequent evaluation if otherwise in order. Wherever, the Bidder has submitted the revised Bid in modification of earlier Bid, the earlier Bid shall be returned unopened to the Bidder.

26. Late Bids

26.1. Any Bid received by Employer after the bid submission deadline shall be declared late, rejected and returned unopened to the Bidder.

27. Withdrawal, Substitution or Modification of Bids

- 27.1. A Bidder may withdraw, substitute or modify its Bid after it has been submitted by sending a written withdrawal/ substitution/ modification notice prior to the deadline for submission of Bids, duly signed by an authorized representative, including a copy of the authorization, Power of Attorney as per Form: 4 of Section III. The bid requested to be withdrawn shall be returned unopened to the Bidder.
- 27.2. The substitution or modification of the Bid must accompany the respective written notice and must be:
 - a) Submitted in accordance with ITB. 26 and, in addition, the respective cover envelopes shall be clearly marked "SUBSTITUTION" or "MODIFICATION;" and
 - b) Received by Employer prior to the deadline prescribed for submission of Bids, in accordance with ITB. 24.
- 27.3. No Bid may be withdrawn, substituted or modified in the interval between the deadline for submission of Bids and the expiry of the period of bid validity specified in the BDS or any extension there of pursuant to 21.2.





DUNGSAM CEMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

- 27.4. Withdrawal, substitution or modification of a Bid between the deadline for submission of Bids and expiry of the period of bid validity (or any extension thereto) shall result in the forfeiture of the bid security pursuant to ITB.24.5.
- 27.5. If the lowest evaluated Bidder withdraws his Bid between the periods specified pursuant to ITB.29.4, the bid security of the Bidder shall be forfeited.





D. Bid Opening, Evaluation and Comparison

28. Bid Opening

- 28.1. Employer shall conduct the bid opening at the address, date and time specified in the BDS. Any specific electronic bid opening procedures required if electronic bidding is permitted shall be as specified in the BDS.
- 28.2. Bidders or their authorized representatives (not more than two) shall be allowed to attend the bid opening. Bidders who chose to attend shall sign the attendance sheet provided in the record of Bid opening with their name, designation, firm name and phone number or any other particulars as may be required. Bidders who chose to attend the opening shall not be allowed to speak on matters related to the Bid until and unless required by the committee members or by seeking permission from the Chairperson by raising hand. Bidders who have any complaint with regard to the Bid opening shall write in the complaint sheet and duly sign the sheet.
- 28.3. The written withdrawal notices duly signed by an authorized representative of the Bidder for withdrawal of Bids, if any, shall be opened first and read out and such Bids shall be returned to the Bidder unopened.
- 28.4. The written substitution/ modification notices duly signed by an authorized representative of the Bidder in accordance with ITB. 27.1 shall be opened and read out and the corresponding cover envelopes, which are marked "SUBSTITUTION"/ "MODIFICATION" shall be opened and exchanged with the corresponding Bids being substituted/modified. The substituted/modified bids shall not be opened, but returned to the Bidder.
- 28.5. Cover envelopes of all other Bids shall be opened one at a time. Bids not accompanied by requisite Bid Security, or other documents and information as detailed in ITB. 16 shall be rejected and returned to the Bidder.
- 28.6. The Bidders' representatives who are present shall be requested to sign the record. The omission of a Bidder's representatives' signature on the record shall not invalidate the contents and effect of the record.
- 28.7. In the case of Single Stage Two Envelope Bids, the technical bid shall be opened on the bid opening date. The date for opening the Financial Bid shall be intimated to the Bidders whose Bid is found responsive in the techno-commercial evaluation.

29. Confidentiality

- 29.1. Information relating to the examination, evaluation, comparison of Bids, and recommendation of Contract Award, shall not be disclosed to Bidders or any other persons not officially concerned with such process until publication of the Contract Award.
- 29.2. Any effort by a Bidder to influence the Employer in the examination, evaluation, comparison and post qualification of the Bids or Contract Award decisions may result in the rejection of its Bid.





29.3. Notwithstanding ITB 29, from the time of Bid Opening to the time of Contract Award, if any Bidder wishes to contact the Employer on any matter related to the bidding process, it should do so in writing.

30. Clarification of Bids

- 30.1. To assist in the examination, evaluation, comparison and post-qualification of the Bids, Employer may, at its discretion, ask any Bidder for a clarification on its Bid including justification and breakup of the rates and prices quoted. Any clarification submitted by a Bidder that is not in response to a request by Employer shall not be considered. Employer's request for clarification and the response thereto shall be in writing and shall be delivered by email/post/hand delivery.
- 30.2. No change in the prices or substance of the Bid shall be sought, offered or permitted, except to confirm the correction of arithmetic errors discovered by Employer in the evaluation of the Bids, in accordance with ITB. 32.

31. Preliminary examinations of Bids and determination of responsiveness

- 31.1. The Employer shall examine the Bids to confirm that all documents and information requested in ITB 16 have been provided, and to determine the completeness of each document submitted.
- 31.2. Prior to the detailed evaluation of bids, the Employer shall determine whether each bid (a) meets the eligibility criteria defined in ITB 4; (b) has been properly signed; (c) is accompanied by the Bid Security; and (d) is substantially responsive to the requirements of the bidding documents.
- 31.3. A substantially responsive bid is one which conforms to all the terms, conditions and specifications of the bidding documents, without material deviation or reservation. A material deviation or reservation is one (a) which affects in any substantial way the scope, quality or performance of the Works; (b) which limits in any substantial way, inconsistent with the Bidding Documents, the Employer's rights or the Bidder's obligations under the Contract; or (c) whose rectification would affect unfairly the competitive position of other Bidders presenting substantially responsive Bids.
- 31.4. If a Bid is not substantially responsive, it will be rejected by the Employer, and may not subsequently be made responsive by correction or withdrawal of the nonconforming deviation or reservation.

32. Correction of Arithmetical Errors in Price Bid

32.1. Arithmetical errors shall be corrected at the time of evaluation of Price Bid and the corrected figure shall be considered for the purpose of evaluated bid price. The corrections in the bid price shall be done as per the provisions of this clause and shall be binding on the Bidder. If the Bidder does not accept the correction of errors as per the provisions of this clause, the bid shall be rejected and the bid security shall be forfeited.





- 32.2. If there is a discrepancy between the product of unit price & quantity and the total price for such item, the product of unit price and quantity shall prevail and the total price shall be corrected unless in the opinion of Employer, there is an obviously gross misplacement of decimal point in the unit rate, in which case, the total of line item as quoted shall prevail and unit rate shall be corrected accordingly.
- 32.3. If there is discrepancy between summation of subtotals and total price, the summation of subtotal price shall prevail, and the total price shall be corrected.
- 32.4. If there is a discrepancy between words and figure, wherever the bid document requires the figures to be written in words and figures, the amount in words shall prevail unless the amount expressed in word has an arithmetic error.
- 32.5. In case the Bidder has not quoted unit price against any item, Employer shall treat the price of unquoted items as zero for the purpose of evaluation, comparison and award, with the assumption that the costs have been absorbed elsewhere in the Price Bid. If such a Bidder emerges as the successful Bidder, he shall be awarded the contract without any price/rate for the concerned items.
- 32.6. In case prices for some items are given by a Bidder as lump sum where unit rates are required, Employer reserves the right to arrive at unit rate on the basis of dividing the entered lump sum amount by the specified quantity.

33. Detail Evaluation and Comparison of Bids

- 33.1. The Employer shall evaluate each Bid that has been determined, up to this stage of the evaluation, to be substantially responsive. To evaluate a Bid, the Employer shall only use the factors, methodologies and criteria defined in ITB 33. No other criteria or methodology shall be permitted.
- 33.2. To evaluate and compare Bids, Employer shall consider the following:
 - a) the final bid price, as quoted in accordance with ITB. 18 in the priced BoQ;
 - b) price adjustment for correction of arithmetic errors in accordance with ITB. 32;
 - c) price adjustment due to discounts offered in accordance with ITB. 18;
 - d) the cost of withdrawal of declared deviations as per Form: 5 of Section III and in accordance with ITB. 33.4;
 - e) adjustments due to the application of the evaluation criteria specified in the BDS or those set out in the Evaluation and Qualification Criteria uploaded in the Employer's/relevant website; and
 - f) adjustment due to the application of a margin of preference, in accordance with ITB 34, if applicable.





- 33.3. Employer's evaluation of a bid shall exclude and not take into account any allowance for price adjustment during the period of execution of the contract, if provided in the Bid.
- 33.4. The evaluation shall be based on the evaluated cost of fulfilling the Contract in compliance with all commercial, contractual and technical obligations under the Bidding Documents. In arriving at the evaluated cost, the price for withdrawal of deviations shown in Form: 5 of Section III of the bid shall be used. Where necessary, if cost of withdrawal of any deviation is not given in Form: 5 of Section III, the Employer shall make its own assessment of the cost of such a deviation for the purpose of ensuring fair comparison of Bids.
- 33.5. For the purpose of comparison, the total price offered by Bidders shall be calculated based on ITB. 33. Employer shall compare the total price offered by all substantially responsive bids of qualified Bidders to determine the lowest evaluated Bid.
- 33.6. If the lowest evaluated Bid appears abnormally low and/or seriously unbalanced, Employer may require the Bidder to produce written explanations of justifications and detailed price analysis for any or all items of the Bill of Quantities to demonstrate the internal consistency of those prices with the construction methods and schedule proposed. Abnormally low Bid may or may not be accepted. If Employer decides to accept the abnormally low Bid /or the Bid with seriously unbalanced rates after considering the above, the Bidder shall be required to provide additional differential security in addition to the performance security, an equivalent to the difference between the estimated and quoted price to a maximum of (ten percent) 10% of the quoted price, to protect Employer against any financial loss in the event of default of the successful Bidder under the Contract. If the lowest evaluated Bid is abnormally high in the discretion of the Employer, then the Employer may seek justification for the high rates and if necessary, negotiate with the lowest evaluated Bidder and may reject the bid if considered to be abnormally higher than the estimate.
- 33.7. Employer reserves the right to accept or reject any variation, deviation or alternative offer. Variations, deviations and alternative offers and other factors which are in excess of the requirements of the Bidding Documents or otherwise result in unsolicited benefits for Employer shall not be taken into account in Bid evaluation.

34. Margin of preference

- 34.1. If specified in the BDS, domestic Contractors may receive a margin of preference in during evaluation, for which this clause shall apply.
- 34.2. A domestic Bidder shall provide all evidence necessary to prove that it meets the following criteria to be eligible for a margin of preference in the comparison of its Bid with those Bidders who do not qualify for the preference. A domestic Bidder shall:
 - a) be registered within Bhutan, constituted under and governed by the civil, commercial or public law of Bhutan, and have its statutory office, central administration or principal place of business there;
 - b) have majority ownership by nationals of Bhutan;
 - c) not subcontract more than twenty percent (20%) of the initial Contract Price, excluding provisional sums, to foreign contractors, suppliers and/orconsultants.





- 34.3. Joint Ventures, Consortia and Associations of domestic firms may be eligible for the margin of preference provided that:
 - a) the individual partners satisfy the criteria of eligibility of ITB 34.2 (a) and (b);
 - b) the JV/C/A is registered in Bhutan;
 - c) the JV/C/A does not subcontract more than ten percent (10%) of the initial Contract Price, excluding provisional sums, to foreign firms; and
 - d) the JV/C/A satisfies any other criteria specified for the purpose of domestic preference eligibility, as specified in the BDS.
- 34.4. The procedure used to apply the margin of preference shall be as stipulated in the BDS.

35. Subcontracting

35.1. Unless otherwise stated in the BDS, Employer does not intend to execute any specific elements of the Works by subcontractors. If permitted, Bidders may propose subcontracting for part of works as specified in the BDS.

36. Employer's Right to Accept Any Bid and to Reject Any or All Bids

36.1. Employer reserves the right to accept or reject any bid, and to annul the bidding process and reject all bids at any time prior to contract award, without thereby incurring any liability to Bidders or any obligation to inform the affected Bidders of the grounds for such action of the Employer.

E. Award of Contract

37. Award Criteria

37.1. Employer shall award the Contract to the successful Bidder whose bid has been determined to be substantially responsive and to be the lowest evaluated Bid, further provided that the Bidder is determined to be eligible and qualified and has the capacity and capability to fulfil the contract in accordance with relevant provisions of the bidding document.

38. Notification of Award

- 38.1. Prior to the expiry of the period of bid validity, Employer shall notify the successful Bidder, through a Notification of Award (NoA) as per Form: 1 of Section VII in writing, that its bid has been accepted indicating the award price. The successful bidder shall return a copy of the Notification of Award to Employer after duly recording "Accepted Unconditionally" under the signature of the authorized signatory within seven (7) days of the date of notification of award.
- 38.2. Until a formal contract is prepared and executed, the NoA shall constitute a binding contract between the successful Bidder and Employer.





- 38.3. Upon the furnishing of performance security pursuant to ITB.40 by the successful Bidder, Employer shall:
 - a) Promptly notify each unsuccessful Bidder and return their bid security; and
 - b) Publish a notification of award on its website.

39. Debriefing by Employer

- 39.1. On receipt of Notification of Award, an unsuccessful Bidder has three (3) working days to make a written request to Employer for a debriefing. Employer shall provide a debriefing to all unsuccessful Bidders whose request has been received within this deadline.
- 39.2. Where a request for debriefing has been received within the deadline, Employer shall provide a debriefing within five (5) working days.
- 39.3. Employer shall discuss only such Bid and not the bids of other competitors. The debriefing shall not include:
 - a. point-by-point comparisons with another Bid; and
 - b. information that is confidential or commercially sensitive to other Bidders.
- 39.4. The purpose of debriefing is to inform the aggrieved Bidder of the reasons for lack of success, pointing out the specific shortcomings in its bid without disclosing contents of other bids.

40. Performance Security

- 40.1. Within thirty days (30) days after receipt of the Notification of Award the successful Bidder shall submit Performance Security equal to 10% of the Contract Price and in the form stipulated in the BDS, denominated in the type and proportions of currencies in the Notification of Award.
- 40.2. Failure of the successful Bidder to comply with the requirements of ITB. 40.1 and shall constitute sufficient grounds for cancellation of the award and forfeiture of the Bid Security.
- 40.3. Upon the successful Bidder's signing of the Contract and furnishing of the Performance Security pursuant to ITB 41.1, the Employer shall promptly notify the name of the winning Bidder to each unsuccessful Bidder and shall discharge the Bid Securities of the unsuccessful Bidders.

41. Signing of Contract

41.1. Upon accepting the Notification of Award (NoA), the successful Bidder shall submit the Performance Security and sign the Contract within thirty (30) days as per form 3 Section VII.





- 41.2. Where the Contract is not signed by both parties in person:
 - a) The Employer shall send to the successful Bidder a duly signed copy comprising of complete Contract documents and the NoA. These documents shall be signed by the successful Bidder or its duly authorized representative, together with the date of signature, in order for the Contract to be effective;
 - b) The NoA shall indicate the deadline within which the successful Bidder shall sign these documents with the date of signature and return a copy to the Employer, in accordance with the mode of delivery including electronic mode (e.g. scanned copy with electronic signature, etc.) as may be specified by the Employer in the NoA;
 - c) The Contract shall become effective from the date of signing these documents;
 - d) Failure of the successful Bidder to accept the award/ sign the contract shall constitute sufficient grounds for the annulment of the award and forfeiture of the bid security.

42. Vendor Performance Management System (VPMS)

42.1. The performance of the Contractor shall be assessed as per the VPMS available in the Employer's website for the purpose of assessing the performance of the Contractor. In addition to this, any other Contractor performance rating system may apply, as applicable.

43. Complaint and Review

- 43.1. If the Bidder has or is likely to suffer, loss or injury due to breach of a duty imposed on the Employer by the provisions of this bidding document, the Bidder shall submit the complaint in writing to the Employer within five (5) days from the date of Notification of Award.
- 43.2. The Head of Procuring Agency shall, within 5 days after the submission of the complaint, issue a written decision.





SECTION II – BID DATA SHEET





BID DATA SHEET

The Bid Data Sheet (BDS) contains information and provisions that are specific to a particular bidding process. The Employer must specify in the BDS only information that the Instructions to Bidders (ITB) request to be specified in the BDS. All information shall be provided, and no clause shall be left blank. To facilitate the preparation of the BDS, its clauses are numbered with the same numbers as the corresponding ITB clauses. This guide provides information to the Employer on how to enter all required information, and includes a BDS format that summarizes all information to be provided.

Whenever there is a conflict, the provisions herein shall prevail over those in the ITB.

ITB	Particulars
4.4	The Bidder is not required to be represented by an agent in Bhutan.
5.1(h)	Insert names of the countries from which contracting of works or any payments to persons or entities in that country are prohibited. Name of the countries: All Except Bhutan
6.2 and 6.12	Joint Venture/Consortium (JV/C) Bids are permitted: No The number of legal entities forming the Joint Venture shall be not more than: Not Applicable
9.1, 9.4 and 12.1	For Bid clarification purposes, the Employer's address is: Attention: Cheni Zangpo
	Address: Dungsam Cement Corporation Limited.
	Phone number: 17461171
	Electronic mail:cheni.zangmo556@dccl.bt
	Bid clarification request will be received on or before:
	Time: 9:00am to 5:00pm
	Date : April 21, 2024
11.1	A pre-bid meeting shall not take place at the following:
	Time: Not Applicable
	Date: Not Applicable
	Venue: Not Applicable
15.1	Alternative Bids Shall not be permitted.
16.1 (i)	The Bidder shall submit with its Bid the following additional documents:
	a) Valid Trade License;
	b) Valid Tax Clearance Certificate;
46.44)	c) Valid CDB registration certificate;
16.1 (g)	Deviation to any of these clauses anywhere in the Bid shall not be
	permitted:
	i. GCC 1.4: Governing Laws
	ii. GCC 19: Settlement of Disputes





DUNGSAM CEMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

	iii. GCC 13: Contract Price
	iv. GCC 3.2: Performance Security
	v. GCC 15.4: Patent Indemnity
	vi. GCC 10.3: Defect Liability
	vii. GCC 15.5: Limitations of Liability
	viii. GCC 8.1: Time for Commencement and Completion
19.2	The prices quoted by the Bidder shall not be adjustable.
20.1	The Currencies of Bid shall be: Bhutanese Ngultrum
21.1	The Bid validity period shall be 60 days from the last date of bid
	submission i.e., up to June 21, 2024
22.1	The Bidder shall furnish a bid security in the amount of Nu. 65,000.00 shall be valid up to July 21, 2024
22.2	The Bid Security shall be provided in any one of the following forms issued/enforceable by any Financial Institutions in Bhutan: i. An unconditional and irrevocable Bank Guarantee; or ii. A Banker's Cheque/ Cash Warrant; or iii. A Demand Draft
22.4	The Bid Security shall be valid till: July 21, 2024
23.1	In addition to the original Bid, the number of copies is: one copy
24.3	For the purpose of bid submission only, the Employer's address is: Chief Executive Officer, Dungsam Coment Corporation Limited
24.4	Dungsam Cement Corporation Limited.
24.4	Mode of Tendering: Single stage single envelope
	Single Stage Single Envelope Superscript of Cover Envelope:
	"CONFIDENTIAL"
	Bid for [Insert name of the package]bearing [NIT No. &Date]
	Name and address of Bidder:
	Not to be Opened Before Due Date for Opening on:[date &
	time]
	Superscript of Envelope 1:
	"Bid Security for [NIT No. &Date]"
	Name of Bidder:
	Superscript of Envelope 2:
	"CONFIDENTIAL





DUNGSAM CEMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

	Bid for [Insert name of the Package]bearing [NIT No. &Date]
	Manage of Didde
	Name of Bidder:
	Not to be Opened Before Due Date for Opening on: [date &time]
24.10	Bidders shall not have the option of submitting their Bids electronically.
28.1	The Bid Opening shall take place at:
20.1	Venue: General Conference Hall, DCCL Administrative Office.
	Date: April 21, 2024
	Time (BST): 3:30 PM
	Time (BST). 3.30 TW
33.2 (e)	In addition to the requirements specified in ITB.16.1, the following
	qualifying requirement shall be met by the Bidder: Shall be evaluated
	based of point based system as per norms of etool/CiNET.
	and any any and any
34.1	Margin of domestic preference of ten percent (10%) shall not apply
34.4	The procedure used to apply the margin of preference shall be:
	Not Applicable
35.1	The ceiling for sub-Contractor's participation and conditions are: Not
_	Applicable
40.1	The Performance Security shall be provided in any one of the following
	forms issued by a reputable Financial Institution and enforceable in any
	Banks in Bhutan:
	(a) Unconditional bank guarantee in the form provided in Section
	VII, Contract Forms; or (b) Demand draft; or
	(c) Cash warrant
	(c) Cash warrant





SECTION III - BIDDING FORMS

(Form No. 1 to Form No. 8)

Applicable forms from this section shall be submitted by the Bidder along with the Bid





FORM 1: BID SECURITY (BANK GUARANTEE)

	Bank Guarantee No
	Date
Го	
[Employer's Name and Address]	
Dear Sir/ Madam,	
[insert currency and amount in words	bank guarantee against Bid Security for an amount of and figures*]
Office at(#)the Employer or its authorized represent words and figures*]without	address of the Bank]
extension of this guarantee is required, the	shall remain valid up to
discharged from all liabilities there under	antee shall be forfeited and the Bank shall be relieved and unless a demand or claim is lodged by Employer under this (30) days from the above-mentioned expiry date of validity
In witness where of the Bank, throug thisday of	th its authorized officer, has set its hand and stamp on20at
WITNESSES: SIGNATURE OF AUTI	HORIZED SIGNATORY OF THE BANK
1.	1.
(Signature)	(Signature)

DUNGSAM CEMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

(Name)	(Name)
(Official Address)	(Designation)
	Authorized vide
	Power of Attorney No
	Date
2.	2.
(Signature)	(Signature)
(Name)	(Name)
(Official Address)	(Designation)
	Authorized vide
	Power of Attorney No
	Date



Note:



FORM 2: INTEGRITY PACT STATEMENT

This agreement should be a part of the tender document, which shall be signed and submitted along with the tender document. The head of the employing agency/or his authorized representative should be the signing authority. For the Bidders, the Bidder himself or his authorized representative must sign the integrity pact (IP). If the winning Bidder had not signed during the submission of the bid; the tender shall be rejected/cancelled.

INTEGRITY PACT

1: General

Whereas the (name and designation of the official at Employer) here in after referred to as the Employer one part, and (Mr...... representing the (name of person, the firm/construction Employer) on the other part (hereafter referred to as the Bidder) here by execute this agreement as follows:

2. Objectives

Now, therefore, the employer and the Bidder agree to enter into this pre-contract agreement, here in after referred to as integrity pact, to avoid all forms of corruption by following a system that is fair, transparent and free from any influence/ unprejudiced dealings prior to, during and subsequent to the currency of the contract to be entered into, with a view to:

- 2.1. Enable the Employer to obtain the desired contract at a reasonable and competitive price in conformity to the defined specifications of the works, goods and services; and
- 2.2 Enable Bidders to abstain from bribing or any corrupt practice in order to secure the contract by providing assurance to them that their competitors shall also refrain from bribing and other corrupt practices and the Employer shall commit to prevent corruption, in any form by their officials by following transparent procedures.
- 3. Commitments of the Employer

The Employer commits itself to the following:

- 3.1. The Employer hereby under takes that no official of the Employer, connected directly or indirectly with the Contract, shall demand, take a promise for or accept, directly or through intermediaries, any bribe, consideration, gift, reward favour or any material or immaterial benefit or any other advantage from the Bidder, either for themselves or for any person, organization or third party related to the Contract in exchange for an advantage in the bidding process, bid evaluation, contracting or implementation process related to the Contract.
- 3.2. The Employer further confirms that its officials have not favored any prospective Bidder in any form that could afford an undue advantage to that particular Bidder during the tendering stage, and shall further treat all Bidders alike.
- 3.3 All the officials of the Employer shall report to the Chief Executive Officer, Employer, any attempted/completed violation of clauses 3.1 and 3.2.
- 3.4 Following report on violation of clauses 3.1 and 3.2 by official (s), through any source, necessary disciplinary proceedings, or any other action as deemed fit, including criminal proceedings may be initiated by the Employer and such a person shall be debarred from further dealings related to the Contract process. In such a case while an enquiry is being conducted by the Employer the proceedings under the Contract would not be stalled.
- 4. Commitments of Bidders





The Bidder commits himself to take all measures necessary to prevent corrupt practices, unfair means and illegal activities during any stage of his bid or during any pre-contract or post-contract stage in order to secure the Contract or in furtherance to secure it and in particular commits himself to the following:

- 4.1 The Bidder shall not offer, directly or through intermediaries, any bribe, gift, consideration, reward, favour, commission, fees, brokerage, any materials or immaterial benefit to any official of the Employer, connected directly or indirectly with the bidding process, or to any person, organization or third party related to the contract in exchange for any advantage in the bidding, evaluation, contracting and implementation of the Contract.
- 4.2 The Bidder further undertakes that he has not given, offered or promised to give, directly or indirectly any bribe, gift, consideration, reward, favour, commission, fees, brokerage, any material or immaterial benefit to any official of the Employer or otherwise in procuring the Contract or forbearing to do or having done any act in relation to the obtaining or execution of the Contract or any other contract with the Employer for showing or forbearing to show favour or disfavor to any person in relation to the Contract or any other contract with the Employer.
- 4.3 The Bidder shall not collude with other parties interested in the contract to preclude the competitive bid price, impair the transparency, fairness and progress of the bidding process, bid evaluation, contracting and implementation of the contract.
- 4.4 The Bidder, either while presenting the bid or during pre-contract negotiations or before signing the contract, shall disclose any payments he has made, is committed to or intends to make to officials of the Employer of their family members, agents, brokers or any other intermediaries in connection with the contract and the details of services agreed upon for such payments.
- 4.5 The Bidder shall not enter into any monetary dealings or transaction, directly, with any tender committee member, and if he does so, the Employer shall be entitled forthwith to rescind the Contract and all other contracts with the Bidder.
- 5. Sanctions for Violation

The breach of any aforesaid provisions or providing false information by employers, including manipulation of information by evaluators, shall face administrative charges and penal actions as per the existing relevant rules and laws.

The breach of the Pact or providing false information by the Bidder, or any one employed by him, or acting on his behalf (whether with or without the knowledge of the Bidder), or the commission of any offence by the Bidder, or any one, employed by him, or acting on his behalf, shall be dealt with as per the provisions of the Penal Code of Bhutan, 2004, and the Anti – Corruption Act, 2006.

In the event of a breach, the Employer shall also take all or any one of the following actions, wherever required:

- 5.1 Immediately call off the pre-contract negotiations without giving any compensation to the Bidder. However, the proceedings with the other Bidder(s) would continue.
- 5.2 Immediately cancel the contract, if already awarded/signed, without giving any compensation to the Bidder.
- 5.3 Forfeit the Earnest Money/security deposited with the Employer.
- 5.4 Recover all sums already paid to the Bidder.





DUNGSAM CEMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

- 5.5 Encash the advance bank guarantee and performance bond /warranty bond, if furnished by the Bidder, in order to recover the payments, already made by the Employer, along with interest
- 5.6 Cancel all or any other Contracts with the Bidder.
- 5.7 Debar the Bidder from entering into any bid from the Employer as per the Debarment Rule.
- 6. Examination of Books of Accounts
- 6.1 In case of any allegation of violation of any provisions of this integrity pact or payment of commission, the Employer/authorized persons or relevant agencies shall be entitled to examine the Books of Accounts of the Bidder and the Bidder shall provide necessary information of the relevant financial documents and shall extend all possible help for the purpose of such examination.
- 7. Monitoring and Arbitration
- 7.1 The Employer shall be responsible for monitoring and arbitration of IP as per the procurement rules.
- 8 Legal Actions
- 8.1 The actions stipulated in this integrity pact are without prejudice to any other legal action that may follow in accordance with the provisions of the extant law in force relating to any civil or criminal proceeding as.
- 9. Validity
- 9.1 The validity of this integrity pact shall cover the tender process and extend until the completion of the contract to the satisfaction of both the employer and the Bidder.
- 9.2 Should one or any provision of this pact turn out to be invalid, the remainder of this pact remains valid. In this case, the parties shall strive to come to an agreement to their original intentions.

We, hereby declare that we have read and understood the clauses of this agreement and shall abide by it. Further, the information provided in this agreement is true and correct to the best of our knowledge and belief.

The parties here by sign this Integrity pact at (name and location of place) on (dd/mm/yy).

EMPLOYER		BIDDER
	<u>Witness</u>	
1		1





FORM 3: BIDDER'S INFORMATION FORM

[The Bidder shall fill in this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated below. No alterations to its format shall be permitted and no substitutions shall be accepted.]

	Date:[insert date of Bid submission
	NIT No.:
1.	Bidder's Legal Name :
2.	In the case of a Joint Venture (JV) legal name of each member of the Joint Venture:
3.	Bidder's or each member of JV's Country of Registration :
4.	Bidder's or Each member of JV's Year of Registration:
5.	Bidder's or Each member of JV's Legal Address in Country of Registration:
6.	Bidder's or Lead member of JV's Local Address in Bhutan (if any):
7.	Bidder's or Each member of JV's Website Address:
8.	Bidder's or Each member of JV's Business Activities:
9.	Bidder's or Lead member of JV's Authorized Representative
	Name:
	Designation:
	Address:
	Telephone:
	E-mail Address:
10.	Bidder's or Lead member of JV's Authorized Representative in Bhutan (if any)
	Name of the Employer or firm:
	Name of the contact person:
	Designation:
	Address:
	Telephone:
	E-mail Address:





DUNGSAM CEMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

	Services to be provided by the local representative:		
11.	 Status of the Bidder (check the box as applicable): Bidding Company Lead Member of the Joint Venture Agent of the Foreign Bidder 		
12.	Attached are copies of the following original documents: [check the box(es) of the attached original documents] • Tax Clearance Certificate of Bidder named in 1 or 2 above (applicable for Bhutanese Bidders) • Trade License of Bidder named in 1 or 2 above (applicable for Bhutanese Bidders) • Certificate of Incorporation or Registration of Bidder named in 1 or 2 above • Any other certificate to support the legal entity of the Bidder named in 1 or 2 above		

Date:	Signature
Place:	Name
	Designation
	Seal





FORM 4: POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS THAT WE,
[insert name of the Bidder] an Employer incorporated under the
[insert address] (Hereinafter referred to as the "Bidder") having been authorized by the Board of
Directors of the Employer, inter alia, to execute contracts in the name of and for and on behalf or
the Employer. I
presently holding the position of
Mr[insert name, designation and residential address of the person to whon
the power of attorney is being given] as our true and lawful attorney to do in our name and on our behalf all such acts, deeds, things necessary and incidental to submission of our Bid against NIT No, floated by Employer. I hereby further
authorize the above attorney for signing and submission of the Bid and all other documents information related to the Bid including undertakings, letters, certificates, declarations
clarifications, acceptances, guarantees, any amendments to the Bid and such documents related to
the Bid, and providing responses and representing us in all the matters before Employer in connection with the Bid for the said NIT till the completion of the bidding process.
I accordingly hereby nominate, constitute and appoint above named severally, as my lawful attorney to do all or
any of the acts specifically mentioned immediately herein above.
WE do hereby agree and undertake to ratify and confirm whatever the said Attorney shall lawfully do or cause to be done under and by virtue of this power of Attorney and the Acts of Attorney to all intents and purposes are done as if I had done the same on behalf of the Employer if these presents had not been made.
IN WITNESS whereof I,
EXECUTANT
Signature
Name:
Designation
ACCEPTED:
Signature of Attorney
Name:
Designation
Signature of the Attorney Attested

DUNGSAM CEMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

EXECUTANT
Name
Designation
Office Seal

Note: The Power of Attorney should be notarized as per applicable legal provisions in the country of the Bidder





NIT No:

FORM 5: DEVIATION SCHEDULE (IF APPLICABLE)

To:

Chief Executive Officer,			
Dungsam Cement Corporati	on Limited.		
Sir,			
The following are the deviations of the Bidding	g Documents and variations and variation at the cost of	for procurement of[in s are exhaustive. We are funds stated in this Form. We shall	nsert brief description of works] rnishing below the cost of hall withdraw the deviations
We confirm that except for the work shall be performed as pany extra cost to Employer, failing which our Bid may be	per specificati irrespective o	ons and conditions of the Br f any mention to the contrar	idding Documents without
Further, we agree that additional than those stated in the given effect to.		•	
Section / Clause No	Page No.	Statement of Deviations	Cost of withdrawal
Date:		(Signature)	
Place:		(Name)	
		(Designation)	
		(Seal)	
Note: Continuation sheets of like	size and forma	t may be used and annexed to thi.	s Form if required.





FORM 6: BID SUBMISSION FORM

Date:

	IIT no		and Title of
T C	Го: Chief Executive Officer, Dungsam Cement Corporation Li		
W	Ve, the undersigned, declare that:		
a)	addendathe	[insert list if any], th the Conditions of Contract	reference ITB 10), including we offer to execute (insert name and title of the ct accompanying this Bid for the (In figures), Ngultrums (In words).
b)	This Bid and your written accepunderstand that you are not boo		binding Contract between us. We any Bid you receive.
c)	We hereby confirm that this Bithe Bidding Documents and spe		dity and Bid Security required by Sheet.
d)	We, including any subcontractors for any part of the Contract, have nationalities from eligible countries in accordance with ITB Clause 7;		
e)	We have no conflict of interest	in accordance with ITB sub	clause 5.2;
f)		red ineligible under the laws	ocontractors for any part of the or official regulations of Bhutan,
g)	Commissions or gratuities, if ar to contract execution if we are a		to agents relating to this Bid, and ted below:
N	Name & address of agent A	Amount & Currency	Purpose of commission or gratuit

- h) Our duly executed Integrity Pact Statement is attached herewith.
- j) We accept the vendor performance management system.





^{*} If none, please state none

DUNGSAM CEMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

Authorized Signature:	_ (AFFIX LEGAL STAMP)
Name and title of signatory:	<u>.</u>
Name of Bidder:	
Address:	





FORM 7: BILL OF QUANTITIES

Refer attachment for the Bill of Quantities.





	FORM 8: PRICE ADJUSTMENT DATA		
		NIT No:	
То,			
Chief	Executive Officer,		
Dungs	am Cement Corporation L	imited.	
Dear S	Sir,		
We he	reby furnish the relevant de	etails pertaining to the price adju	stment provisions in your
specifi	cations and documents.		
Sl	Variables	Name of published index	Value of indices as on 30
No.		and its origin	days prior to date set for
			Opening of bids.
	Material		
	Labour		
Da	te:	Signature	
Place:		Name	
	Designation		
		Seal	
Note:			

- 1. Bidders shall note that it is mandatory to furnish the values of various indices and name, source & origin of the published indices, wherever called for in the bidding document. Bidders are also required to mention whether the indices are monthly average, weekly average or as applicable.
- * Continuation sheets of like size & format shall be used, if required, in case number of currencies is more than one.
- ** Continuation sheets of like size and format may be used, if countries of origin of expatriate labour are more than one.





DUNGSAM CEMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

SECTION IV – GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT





A. General Provisions

1. Definitions

- 1.1 The following words and expressions shall have the meaning hereby assigned to them except where the context otherwise requires.
- (i) Affiliate means business concerns, organizations or individuals that control each other or that are controlled by a common third party. Control may include shared management or ownership; common use of facilities, equipment and resources; or family interests.
- (ii) Employer means the Employer including its legal successors and permitted assigns. The term "Employer" and "Employer" are synonymous.
- (iii) Bid means an offer to execute Works in accordance with the terms and conditions set out in the bidding documents inviting such offers. The term "tender" is synonymous with the term "bid".
- (iv) Bid Data Sheet (BDS) means the proforma sheet, which contains data and information specific to a particular work.
- (v) Bidder means an eligible individual, firm, legal entity or joint venture that participates in a competitive bidding process governed by the bidding documents.
- (vi) Bidding Document means the set of documents sold or issued by Employer to potential Bidders in which the specifications, terms and conditions of the proposed procurement are prescribed. The terms "Bidding Documents", "Tender Documents" and "Bid Documents" are synonymous.
- (vii) Bill of Quantities (BoQ) means summary of the quantities and unit prices of the items of work proposed and agreed under the contract.
- (viii) Contract means formal agreement(s) in writing entered into simultaneously between Employer and the Contractor on mutually agreed terms and conditions including the Contract Documents and amendments thereto pursuant to Notification of Award issued by Employer and accepted by the Contractor and which are in compliance with all the relevant provisions of the Governing Law of the Contract as per GCC 4.
- (ix) Contract Document means the documents referred in Contract Agreement.
- (x) Contract Price means the price payable to the Contractor as specified in the Contract Agreement, subject to such additions and adjustments thereto or deductions therefrom as may be made pursuant to the provisions of the Contract till the completion of the contract, the price so adjusted shall be termed as executed/final Contract Price.
- (xi) Contractor means an individual or legal entity whose Bid to perform the Contract has been accepted by Employer and is named as such in the Contract Agreement, and includes the legal successors or permitted assigns of the Contractor.
- (xii) Contractor's Representative means any person nominated by the Contractor and approved by Employer in the manner provided in GCC 13Error! Reference source ot found. hereof to perform the duties assigned by the Contractor.





- (xiii) Contractor's Equipment means all plant, facilities, equipment, machinery, tools, apparatus, appliances or things of every kind required for erection, completion and maintenance of works that are to be provided by the Contractor, but does not include plant, equipment, materials or other things intended to form or forming part of the works.
- (xiv) Day means calendar day of the Gregorian calendar.
- (xv) Day works are varied work inputs subject to payment on a time basis for the Contractor's employees and Equipment, in addition to payments for associated Materials and Plant.
- (xvi) Defect Liability Period means the period of validity of the warranties given by the Contractor commencing at completion of the Works or a part thereof, if separate completion of the Works for such part has been provided in the Contract, during which the Contractor is responsible for defects with respect to the Works (or the relevant part thereof) as provided in **Error! Reference source not found.**46 hereof.
- (xvii) The Defects Liability Certificate is the certificate issued by the Employer upon correction of defects by the Contractor.
- (xviii) Drawings include calculations and other information provided or approved by the Employer for the execution of the Contract.
- (xix) Effective Date means the date of Notification of Award/ Work Order/Contract Signing and from which the time for completion shall be determined.
- (xx) Foreign Bidder shall mean any Bidder having nationality of any country other than Bhutan.
- (xxi) Joint Venture or "JV" means a joint venture, association or consortium of not more than four (4) legal entities that pool their resources and skills to undertake a large or complex Contract in the role as a Contractor, with all legal entities (members in the JV) being legally liable, jointly and severally, through a joint venture agreement between the members of the JV for the execution of the Contract in the event of a member's withdrawal.
- (xxii) Notification of Award (NoA) means the letter or order issued by Employer conveying the acceptance of the Bid of the successful Bidder subject to such terms and conditions as may have been stated therein.
- (xxiii) Local Transportation shall include loading, unloading, handling of plant, equipment and materials at the port of entry in India/airport in Bhutan; storage at the port/airport, if required, and subsequent transportation from the port of entry/airport up to the Site.
- (xxiv) Month means calendar month of the Gregorian calendar.
- (xxv) Materials are all supplies, including consumables, used by the Contractor for incorporation in the Works.
- (xxvi) Party means the Employer or the Contractor, as the context requires, and "Parties" means both of them.





- (xxvii) Project Manager means the person appointed by Employer in the manner provided in GCC.9.1 hereof and named as such in the SCC to perform the duties delegated by Employer.
- (xxviii) Plant is any integral part of the Works that shall have a mechanical, electrical, chemical or biological function.
- (xxix) Site is the area defined as such in the SCC.
- (xxx) Subcontractor means any person named in the Contract as a subcontractor, or any person appointed by the Contractor as a subcontractor or designer, for a part of the works; and the legal successors in title to each of these persons.
- (xxxi) Time for Completion means the time within which completion of the Works as a whole (or of a part of the Works where a separate Time for Completion of such part has been prescribed) is to be attained in accordance with the stipulations in the SCC and the relevant provisions of the Contract.
- (xxxii) Technical Specifications means specifications of the Works incorporated in the bidding documents and forming part of the contract and includes any modification or amendment thereto or any addition thereto or any deduction therefrom, as may be made with the mutual agreement of the Employer and Contractor.
- (xxxiii) Temporary Works means all temporary works of every kind (other than Contractor's Equipment) required on Site for the execution of the Works.
- (xxxiv) Works shall mean the total work to be executed in accordance with the Contract or part(s) thereof, as the case may be, and shall include all extra or additional, altered or substituted works or temporary/enabling works and urgent works as required for performance of the Contract.
- (xxxv) A Variation means any change to the Works, which is instructed as a variation under Clause.

2. Interpretation

- 2.1 In the Contract, except where the context requires otherwise:
- a. Words indicating one gender shall include all genders;
- b. Words indicating the singular also include the plural and words indicating the plural also include the singular;
- c. Provisions including the word "agree," "agreed," or "agreement" require the agreement to be recorded in writing;
- d. "Written" or "in writing" means hand-written, type-written, printed or electronically made, and resulting in a permanent record;
- e. "may" means that the party/person referred to has the choice whether to act or not in the matter referred to; and





- f. "shall" means that the party/person referred to has an obligation under the Contract to perform the duty referred to.
- 2.1 "Month" and "Year" and all dates shall be reckoned according to the Gregorian calendar.
- 2.2 A "law" shall be construed as a reference to such law including its amendments or reenactments from time to time.
- 2.3 A "person" shall be construed as a reference to any person, firm, Employer, corporation, society, trust, government, or agency of a government or any association or partnership (whether or not having separate legal personality) of two or more of the above and a person shall be construed as including a reference to its successors, permitted transferees and permitted assigns in accordance with their respective interests.
- 2.4 The words "hereof" or "herein" if and when used in the Contract Documents shall mean a reference to the Contract Documents of this Contract.

2.5 Incoterms

a) Unless inconsistent with any provision of the Contract, the meaning of any trade term, when used, and the rights and obligations of Parties thereunder shall be governed by the rules prescribed in the current edition of Incoterms specified in the SCC and published by the International Chamber of Commerce in Paris, France.

2.6 Amendment

a) No amendment or other variation of the Contract shall be effective unless it is in writing, is dated, expressly refers to the Contract, and is signed by duly authorized representatives of Employer and the Contractor.

2.7 Non-waiver

- a) Subject to 2.7(b) below, no relaxation, forbearance, delay or indulgence by either party in enforcing any of the terms and conditions of the Contract or the granting of time by either party to the other shall prejudice, affect or restrict the rights of that Party under the Contract, nor shall any waiver by either Party of any breach of Contract operate as waiver of any subsequent or continuing breach of Contract;
- b) Any waiver of a party's rights, powers or remedies under the Contract must be in writing, dated and signed by an authorized representative of the party granting such waiver, and must specify the right and the extent to which it is being waived.

2.8 Severability

a) If any provision or condition of the Contract is prohibited or rendered invalid or unenforceable, such prohibition, invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provisions and conditions of the Contract.

2.9 Entire Agreement





a) The Contract constitutes the entire agreement between Employer and the Contractor, with respect to the subject matter of Contract, and supersedes all communications, negotiations and agreements (whether written or oral) of the Parties with respect thereto made prior to the date of Contract.

3. Notices

- 3.1 Notices shall be deemed to include any approvals, consents, instructions, orders, determinations and certificates to be given under the Contract.
- 3.2 Unless otherwise stated in the Contract, all notices to be given under the Contract shall be in writing, and shall be sent by personal delivery, or courier, or post, or electronic mail, writing to the address specified in the SCC.
- 3.3 Any notice sent by post or courier shall be deemed (in the absence of evidence of earlier receipt) to have been delivered ten (10) days after dispatch. In proving the fact of dispatch, it shall be sufficient to show that the envelope containing such notice was properly addressed, stamped and conveyed to the postal authorities or courier service for transmission by airmail or special courier.
- Any notice delivered personally or electronic mail shall be deemed to have been delivered on date of its dispatch. Either Party may change its address at which notices are to be received and/or sent by giving ten (10) days' notices to other Party in writing.

4. Governing Law and Language

- 4.1 The Contract shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the Kingdom of Bhutan.
- 4.2 The Contractor shall, in all matters arising in the performance of the Contract, comply in all respects, give all notices and pay all fees required by the provisions of any statute, ordinance or other law or any regulation or by-law of any duly constituted authority of the Kingdom of Bhutan.
- 4.3 The Contractor shall indemnify and hold Employer harmless from and against any and all liabilities, damages, claims, fines, penalties and expenses of whatever nature arising or resulting from the violation of such laws by the Contractor or its personnel including its Sub-Contractors and their employees.
- 4.4 The Contract, as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the Contract exchanged by the Contractor and Employer, shall be written in English. Supporting documents and printed literature that are part of the Contract may be in another language provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages in English, in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the Contract, the translation shall govern.
- 4.5 The Contractor shall bear all costs of translation to the governing language and all risks of the accuracy of such translation, for documents provided by the Contractor.





5. Assignment

- 5.1 The Contractor shall not, without the express prior written consent of Employer, assign to any third party the Contract or any part thereof, or any right, benefit, obligation or interest therein or there under, except that the Contractor shall be entitled to:
- 5.2 Assign either absolutely or by way of charge any monies due and payable to it or that may become due and payable to it under the Contract in favour of its bankers;
- 5.3 Assign to the insurers (in cases where the insurers have discharged the Contractor's loss or liability) of the Contractor's right to obtain relief from any other liable party.

6. Fraud and Corruption

- 6.1 If Employer determines that the Contractor and/or any of its personnel, or its agents, or its subcontractors, and/or their employees has engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive coercive, or obstructive practices, in competing for or in executing the Contract, then Employer may, after giving fourteen (14) days' notice to the Contractor, terminate the Contract and expel him from the site, and the provisions of GCC.L shall apply as if such expulsion had been made under GCC.61.1c)
- 6.2 For the purposes of this sub-clause,
- a) "Corrupt practice" is the offering, giving, receiving or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party;
- b) "Fraudulent practice" is any act or omission, including a misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain a financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;
- c) "Collusive practice" is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party;
- d) "Coercive practice" is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party;
- e) "Obstructive practice" is
- i. Deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering or concealing of evidence material during an investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede any investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation, or
- ii. Acts intended materially to impede the exercise of the inspection rights of Employer or any organization or person appointed by Employer.





7. Joint Venture

7.1 If the Contractor is a joint venture, all such parties shall be jointly and severally bound to Employer for the fulfillment of the obligations under the Contract and shall designate one of such firms/parties to act as a leader with authority to bind the joint venture. The composition or the constitution of the joint venture shall not be altered without the prior consent of Employer.

B. The Employer

8. Access to Site

- 8.1 Employer shall give access to and possession of all parts of the Site including special and/or temporary rights-of-way to the Contractor, free from all encumbrances. Employer reserves the right to hand over the Site in parts progressively to the Contractor. The Contractor shall be required to take possession of the Site without any undue delay and commence the Works on the released fronts in parts without any reservation whatsoever.
- 8.2 The Contractor shall allow the Project Manager and any person authorized by the Employer access to the Site and to any place where work in connection with the Contract is being carried out or is intended to be carried out.

9. Employer Representative

9.1 Project Manager

- a) If the Project Manager is not named in the Contract, then within fourteen (14) days of the Effective Date, Employer shall appoint and notify the Contractor in writing of the name of the Project Manager. Employer may from time to time appoint some other person as the Project Manager in place of the person previously so appointed, and shall give a notice of the name of such other person to the Contractor without delay. Employer shall take reasonable care to see that no such appointment is made at such a time or in such a manner as to impede the progress of Works. The Project Manager shall represent and act for Employer at all times during the currency of the Contract and carry out duties and responsibilities specified in the Contract. All notices, instructions, orders, certificates, approvals and all other communications under the Contract shall be given by the Project Manager, except as herein otherwise provided.
- b) The Project Manager's representative shall be appointed by and be responsible to the Project Manager and shall carry out such duties and exercise such authority as may be delegated to him by the Project Manager under GCC 9.1c) Project Manager's representative shall have no authority to relieve the Contractor of any of his duties or obligations under the Contract except as expressly provided hereunder or elsewhere in the Contract, nor to order any work involving delay or any extra payment by Employer, nor to make any variation in the Works.
- c) The Project Manager may, from time-to-time delegate to the Project Manager's representative any of the powers and authorities vested in the Project Manager and he may at any time revoke such delegation. Any communication issued by the Project Manager's





- representative to the Contractor in accordance with such delegation shall have the same effect as though it had been issued by the Project Manager, provided that:
- d) Any failure on the part of the Project Manager's representative to disapprove any work or materials shall not prejudice the authority of the Project Manager thereafter to disapprove such work or materials and to give instructions for the removal or for the rectification thereof;
- e) If the Contractor questions any communication of the Project Manager's representative, he may refer the matter to the Project Manager who shall confirm, reverse or vary the contents of such communication.
- f) The Project Manager or his representative may appoint any number of persons to assist the Project Manager's representative in carrying out his duties. Such assistants shall have no authority to issue any instructions to the Contractor save in so far as such instructions may be necessary to enable them to carry out their duties and to secure their acceptance of materials, plant, equipment and machinery or workmanship as being in accordance with the Contract, and any instructions given by any of them for those purposes shall be deemed to have been given by the Project Manager's representative.

10. Employer's Responsibilities

- 10.1 Employer shall ensure the accuracy of all information and/or data to be supplied by Employer, except when otherwise expressly stated in the Contract.
- 10.2 Employer shall be responsible for acquiring and providing legal and physical possession of the site and access thereto, and for providing possession of and access to all other areas reasonably required for the proper execution of the Contract, including all requisite rights of way.
- 10.3 If requested by the Contractor, Employer shall try its best to assist the Contractor in obtaining in a timely and expeditious manner all permits, approvals and/or licenses necessary for the execution of the Contract from all government authorities or public service undertakings that such authorities or undertakings require the Contractor or subcontractors or the personnel of the Contractor or subcontractors, as the case may be.
- 10.4 If so specified in the SCC, the Employer shall provide qualified personnel; shall supply and make available all raw materials, utilities, lubricants, chemicals, catalysts, other materials and facilities and shall perform work and services of whatsoever nature to enable the Contractor to complete the Works at or before the time specified in the program furnished by the Contractor under 2424 hereof and in the manner thereupon specified or as otherwise agreed upon by Employer and the Contractor.

C. The Contractor

11. Responsibility of the Contractor

11.1 The Contractor shall design, execute and complete the works in accordance with the Contract and with the Project Manager's instructions, and shall remedy any defects in the works.





- 11.2 The Contractor shall provide all documents specified in the Contract, and all Contractor's personnel, goods, consumables and other things and services, whether of a temporary or permanent nature, required in and for the design, execution, and completion of Works and remedying of defects.
- 11.3 The Contractor shall be responsible for the adequacy, stability, and safety of all site operations and of all methods of construction. The Contractor (i) shall be responsible for all Contractor's documents, temporary works and such design of each item of Works, equipment or materials as is required for the item to be in accordance with the contract and (ii) shall not otherwise be responsible for the design or specification of the permanent works.
- 11.4 The Contractor shall, whenever required by the Project Manager, submit details of the arrangements and methods which the Contractor purposes to adopt for the execution of the works. No significant alteration to these arrangements and methods shall be made without this having previously being notified to the Project Manager.
- 11.5 If the Contract specifies that the Contractor shall design any part of the permanent works, then unless otherwise stated:
- a) The Contractor shall submit to the Project Manager the Contractor's documents for this part in accordance with the procedures specified in the Contract;
- b) The Contractor's documents, in this regard, shall be in accordance with the specification and drawings, shall be written in the language for communications defined in **Error! eference source not found.**4, and shall include additional information required by the Project Manager to add to the drawings for co-ordination of each party's designs;
- c) The Contractor shall be responsible for this part and it shall, when the works are completed, be fit for such purposes for which the part is intended as are specified in the Contract; and
- d) Prior to the commencement of the tests on completion, the Contractor shall submit to the Project Manager the "as- built" documents and operation and maintenance manuals in accordance with the specification and in sufficient detail for the Project Manager to operate, maintain, dismantle, reassemble, adjust and repair this part of the Works. Such part shall not be considered to be completed for the purpose of taking-over under Error! eference source not found.42 until these documents and manuals have been submitted to the Project Manager.
- 11.6 Within 14 days of possession of site, the Contractor shall erect an information board as specified in SCC and construct a permanent board towards the completion of Project.

12. Performance Security

12.1 The Contractor shall, within fifteen (15) days of the Notification of Award, provide a performance security equivalent to ten percent (10%) of the Contract Price valid until as specified in SCC. However, in case of delay in completion of the Contract, the validity of the contract performance security shall be extended by the Contractor for such period of delay. Employer shall encash the performance security to avoid it becoming invalid in case of failure by Contractor to extend the validity before 7 days of expiry.





- 12.2 For Contracts not deducting retention money if specified in SCC, the Contractor shall extend the validity of the performance security until 30 days beyond defect liability period (DLP) before the release of final bill payment. In case of failure to extend, Employer shall withhold from final payment equivalent to 10% of the executed Contract price or the total final payment, in lieu of retention money. If the executed Contract price exceeds the Contract price, then retention money equivalent to 10% of the exceeded amount in addition to the performance security already submitted shall be deducted from the running bills and retained until 30 days beyond DLP.
- 12.3 The performance security shall be denominated in the currency or currencies of the Contract or in a freely convertible currency acceptable to Employer and shall be in the form specified in SCC, issued/enforceable by any financial institution.
- 12.4 The performance security shall be discharged and returned to the Contractor with in thirty (30) days after the issuance of Work completion certificate/no defects liability certificate, whichever is applicable.
- 12.5 The proceeds from the Performance Security shall be payable to Employer as compensation for any loss resulting from the Contractor's failure to complete its obligations under the Contract.

13. Contractor's Representative and Construction Manager

- 13.1 If the Contractor's Representative is not named in the Contract, then within fourteen (14) days of the Effective Date, the Contractor shall appoint his representative and shall request Employer in writing to approve the person so appointed. If Employer makes no objection to the appointment within fourteen (14) days, the Contractor's Representative shall be deemed to have been approved. If Employer objects to the appointment within fourteen (14) days giving the reason thereof, then the Contractor shall appoint a replacement within fourteen (14) days of such objection, and the foregoing provisions of this clause GCC 13.1 shall apply thereto.
- 13.2 The Contractor's Representative shall represent and act for the Contractor at all times during the currency of the Contract and shall give to the Project Manager all the Contractor's notices, instructions, information and all other communications under the Contract.
- 13.3 All notices, instructions, information and all other communications given by Employer or the Project Manager to the Contractor under the Contract shall be given to the Contractor's Representative or, in its absence, its deputy, except as herein otherwise provided.
- 13.4 The Contractor shall not revoke the appointment of the Contractor's Representative without Employer's prior written consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. If Employer consents thereto, an equivalently qualified, experienced and competent replacement shall be appointed in pursuant to the procedure set out in 13.1 13.1
- 13.5 The Contractor's Representative may, subject to the approval of Employer (which shall not be unreasonably withheld), at any time delegate to any person any of the powers, functions and authorities vested in him or her. Any such delegation may also be revoked at any time subject to the approval of Employer. Any such delegation or revocation shall be subject to a prior notice signed by the Contractor's Representative, and shall specify the





- powers, functions and authorities thereby delegated or revoked. No such delegation or revocation shall take effect unless and until a copy thereof has been delivered to Employer and the Project Manager.
- 13.6 Any act or exercise by any person of powers, functions and authorities so delegated to him or her in accordance with this clause 13.4 13.5 shall be deemed to be an act or exercise by the Contractor's Representative.
- 13.7 From the commencement of Works at the Site until operational acceptance, the Contractor's Representative shall appoint a suitable person as the construction manager (hereinafter referred to as "the Construction Manager"). The Construction Manager shall supervise all work done at the Site by the Contractor and shall be present at the Site throughout normal working hours except when on leave, sick or absent for reasons connected with the proper performance of the Contract. Whenever the Construction Manager is absent from the Site, an equivalently qualified, experienced and competent person shall be appointed to act as his or her deputy.
- 13.8 Employer may by notice to the Contractor object to any representative or person employed by the Contractor in the execution of the Contract who, in the reasonable opinion of Employer, may behave inappropriately, may be incompetent or negligent, or may commit a serious breach of the Site regulations provided under **Error! Reference source not ound.** 18. Employer shall provide evidence of the same, whereupon the Contractor shall remove such person from the Site.
- 13.9 If any representative or person employed by the Contractor is removed in accordance with 13.7 13.8, the Contractor shall, where required, promptly appoint a replacement.
- 13.10 If any dispute of any kind whatsoever arises between Employer and the Contractor in connection with or arising out of the Contract, including without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, any question regarding its existence, validity or termination, or the execution of the works whether during the progress of the works or after their completion and whether before or after the termination, abandonment or breach of the Contract the parties shall seek to resolve any such dispute or difference by mutual consultation.

14. Opportunities for other Contractors

- 14.1 The Contractor shall, upon written request from Employer or the Project Manager, provide a reasonable opportunity to other Contractors employed by Employer to carry out the work at or near the Site. If the Contractor so requires, Employer shall facilitate the Contractor to make use of the facilities created by other Contractors in and around the site, for the purpose of execution of the Contract. In the process of and as a result of using such facilities, if any damage is caused to the Works, the Contractor shall be responsible to make good such damage at his own cost.
- 14.2 If the Contractor, upon written request from Employer or the Project Manager, makes available to other Contractors any roads or access ways, (the maintenance for which the Contractor is responsible), permits the use by such other Contractors of the Contractor's Equipment, or provides any other service of whatsoever nature to such other Contractors, Employer shall fully compensate the Contractor for any loss or damage caused or occasioned by such other Contractors in respect of any such use or service, and shall pay to the Contractor a reasonable remuneration for the use of such equipment or the provision of such services.





- 14.3 The Contractor shall also arrange to perform its work so as to minimize, to the extent possible, interference with the work of other Contractors. The Project Manager shall determine the resolution of any difference or conflict that may arise between the Contractor and other Contractors and the workers of Employer with regard to their work.
- 14.4 The Contractor shall notify the Project Manager promptly of any defects in the other Contractors' work that come to its notice, and that could affect the Contractor's work. The Project Manager shall determine the corrective measures, if any, required to rectify the situation after inspection of the Works. Decisions made by the Project Manager shall be binding on the Contractor.

15. Emergency Work

- 15.1 If, for reason of an emergency arising during the execution of the Contract, any protective or remedial work is necessary as a matter of urgency to prevent damage to the Works, the Contractor shall immediately carry out such work.
- 15.2 If the Contractor is unable or unwilling to do such work immediately, Employer may do or cause such work to be done, as it may determine it necessary in order to prevent damage to the Works. In such event Employer shall, as soon as practicable after the occurrence of any such emergency, notify the Contractor in writing of such emergency, the work done and the reasons thereof. If the work done or caused to be done by Employer is work that the Contractor was liable to do at its own expense under the Contract, the reasonable costs incurred by Employer in connection therewith shall be paid by the Contractor to Employer.

16. Progress Review Meetings

16.1 The Contractor shall attend all periodic progress review meetings organized by the Project Manager or his authorized representative. The deliberations in the meetings shall inter-alia include the scheduled program, progress of work achieved (including details of manpower, tools and plants deployed by the Contractor vis-a-vis agreed work schedule), inputs to be provided by Employer, delays, if any and recovery programme, specific hindrances to the Works and work instructions by the Project Manager. The minutes of such meetings shall be prepared by the Project Manager. These minutes shall be jointly signed by the Project Manager or his authorized representative and the Contractor and one copy of the signed minutes shall be handed over to the Contractor.

17. Protection of the Environment

17.1 The Contractor shall take all reasonable steps to protect the environment on and off the Site and to avoid damage or nuisance to persons or to property of the public or others resulting from pollution, noise or other causes arising as a consequence of his methods of operation, and shall preserve and protect all existing vegetation and trees on or adjacent to the Site which do not unreasonably interfere with the execution of the Works. The Contractor shall be held responsible for all unauthorized cutting of and damage to trees, by careless operation of his plant, equipment or materials and stockpiling of materials etc. and Employer shall have no responsibility on this account.





18. Site Regulations and Safety

- 18.1 Employer and the Contractor shall establish Site regulations setting out the rules to be observed in the execution of the Contract at the Site and shall comply therewith. The Contractor shall draft site regulations and submit a copy to the Project Manager, Employer for his approval, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. Notwithstanding the approval of the Project Manager, the Contractor shall be responsible for the adequacy, stability and safety of all Site operations and methods of execution of the Contract.
- 18.2 Such Site regulations shall include, but shall not be limited to, rules in respect of security, safety of the Works, gate control, sanitation, medical care, and fire prevention.

19. Site Clearance

- 19.1 Site Clearance in course of performance: In the course of carrying out the Contract, the Contractor shall keep the Site reasonably free from all unnecessary obstruction, store or remove any surplus materials, clear away any wreckage, rubbish or temporary works from the Site, and remove any Contractor's Equipment no longer required for execution of the Contract.
- 19.2 Clearance of Site after completion: After completion of all parts of the Works, the Contractor shall clear away and remove all wreckage, rubbish and debris of any kind from the Site, and shall leave the Site and Works clean and safe to the satisfaction of the Project Manager, without which the final bill shall be withheld.

20. Watching and Lighting

20.1 The Contractor shall provide and maintain at its own expense all lighting, fencing, and watching when and where necessary for the proper execution and the protection of the Works, or for the safety of the owners and occupiers of adjacent property and for the safety of the public.

21. Explosives

21.1 Permission for the use of explosives shall be obtained from the Project Manager or from any appropriate authority as directed by the Project Manager and all explosive materials shall be used only under close supervision. It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to seek and obtain any necessary permits, and to ensure that the requirements of the authorities are complied with, in all respects. Failure to do so may result in the Project Manager withdrawing permission to use explosives. The indemnification provided for shall include indemnification against all claims in respect of any incident arising from the use of explosives.

22. Temporary Utilities

22.1 The Contractor, except as stated in SCC, be responsible for the provision of all temporary utilities, including electricity, gas, telecommunication, drinking water, construction water and any other services the Contractor may require for the execution of the Works.





23. Working hours

- 23.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract, no work shall be carried out during the night and on public holidays of the Kingdom of Bhutan without prior written consent of Employer, except where work is necessary to ensure the safety of the Works, for the protection of life, or to prevent loss or damage to property. Where work is needed to be carried out during public holidays, the Contractor shall immediately advise the Project Manager and seek his advice and consent. However, the provisions of this clause shall not apply to any work, which is customarily carried out in multiple shifts. Notwithstanding the above provisions, female labour shall not be employed in night shifts.
- 23.2 Notwithstanding GCC.23.1 or 2728, if and when the Contractor considers it necessary to carry out work at night or on public holidays so as to meet the Time for Completion and requests the Employer's consent thereto, Employer shall not unreasonably withhold such consent.

24. Program of Performance

24.1 Within twenty-eight (28) days of the Effective Date, the Contractor shall prepare and submit in soft copies to the Project Manager for his approval a detailed program of performance of the Contract, made in the form of PERT network (prepared in the software as may be directed by Employer) and showing the sequence in which it proposes to design, execute and complete the Works as well as the date(s) by which the Contractor reasonably requires that Employer shall have fulfilled its obligations under the Contract so as to enable the Contractor to execute the Contract in accordance with the program and to achieve completion of the Works in accordance with the Contract. The Contractor shall update and revise the program as and when appropriate or when required by the Project Manager, but without modification in the Time for Completion given in the SCC and any extension granted in accordance with Error! Reference source not found.39, and shall ubmit all such revisions to the Project Manager for his approval.

25. Progress of Performance

25.1 If at any time the Contractor's actual progress falls behind the program referred to in 243.14.1, or it becomes apparent that it shall so fall behind, the Contractor shall, at the request of Employer or the Project Manager, prepare and submit to the Project Manager a revised program, taking into account the prevailing circumstances, and shall notify the Project Manager of the steps being taken to expedite progress so as to attain completion of the Works within the Time for Completion under **Error! Reference source not ound.**37, any extension thereof entitled under GCC.39, or any extended period as may otherwise be agreed upon between Employer and the Contractor.

26. Subcontracting

- 26.1 The Contractor shall not Sub-Contract any part of the Contract or any part of the scope of work under the Contract, without explicit and written approval of Employer.
- 26.2 Where sub-Contracting is allowed and approved, the Contractor shall prepare a list of subcontractors with the approval of Employer. The Contractor may propose any addition to or deletion from any such list. The Contractor shall submit any such list or any





modification thereto to Employer for its approval in sufficient time so as not to impede the progress of Works. Such approval by Employer for any of the subcontractors shall not relieve the Contractor from any of its obligations, duties or responsibilities under the Contract.

26.3 The Contractor shall be responsible fully for the acts, defaults and negligence of his sub-Contractors, their agents, servants, and workmen as if such acts, defaults, and negligence is of the Contractor. The Contractor shall be under obligation to furnish the un-priced copies of the Contracts awarded to the sub-Contractors at the request of Employer.

D. Contractor's Staff/Labour and Equipment

27. Key Personnel

27.1 The Contractor shall employ the key personnel named in the Schedule of Key Personnel, as referred to in the SCC, to carry out the functions stated in the Schedule or other personnel approved by the Project Manager. The Project Manager shall approve any proposed replacement of key personnel only if their relevant qualifications and abilities are substantially equal to or better than those of the personnel listed in the Schedule. If the Contractor fails to deploy the personnel as committed in the Biding Document, the employer shall stop the work if the quality of work is going to suffer or otherwise deduct the salaries of such personnel at a rate stipulated in the SCC per month per personnel for every month of absence of such personnel from the site. Such deductions shall continue till such time that the Contractor deploys the key personnel acceptable to the employer. If the Contractor fails to deploy such key personnel within one to four months, the deductions may be discontinued and the Contractor's failure to deploy such personnel shall be treated as a fundamental breach of Contract. This shall also apply to the commitment of employment to Bhutanese.

28. Labour

- 28.1 The Contractor shall provide and employ on the Site in the execution of the Works such skilled, semi-skilled and unskilled labour as is necessary for the proper and timely execution of the Contract. The Contractor is encouraged to use local labour that has the necessary skills.
- 28.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract, the Contractor shall be responsible for the recruitment, transportation, accommodation, medical care and catering of all labour, local or expatriate, required for the execution of the Contract and for all payments in connection therewith.
- 28.3 The Contractor shall be responsible, at his own cost, for obtaining all necessary permit(s) and/or visa(s) from the appropriate authorities for the entry of all labour and personnel to be employed on the Site into the Kingdom of Bhutan. The Contractor shall submit to Employer for its approval details and bio-data of all expatriate personnel, which he proposes to engage for the performance of Works under the Contract, at least sixty (60) days prior to their departure for Bhutan. Such data for each personnel shall contain, among other details, his name, present address, his assignment and responsibility in connection with the Works, and a short resume of his qualifications, experience etc. in relation to the works to be performed by him.





- 28.4 Any expatriate personnel deployed for the Works at Site, if found unsuitable or unacceptable later on to RGoB/ Employer, shall within a reasonable time, be repatriated by the Contractor, who shall make alternative arrangements for providing a suitable replacement.
- 28.5 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide the means of repatriation to all of its and its subcontractor's personnel employed on the Contract at the Site to their various home countries. It shall also provide suitable temporary maintenance of all such persons from the cessation of their employment on the Contract to the date programmed for their departure. In the event that the Contractor defaults in providing such means of transportation and temporary maintenance, Employer may provide the same to such personnel and recover the cost of doing so from the Contractor.
- 28.6 No person brought to Bhutan for the completion of Works shall be repatriated without the consent of the Project Manager on a written request from the Contractor for such repatriation giving reasons thereof. The Project Manager may give permission for such repatriation provided it is satisfied that the progress of Works shall not suffer due to such repatriation/replacement.
- 28.7 The Contractor shall at all times during the progress of the Contract use its best endeavors to prevent any unlawful, riotous or disorderly conduct or behavior by or amongst its employees and the labour of its subcontractors for the preservation of peace and protection of persons and property at the Site and its surroundings.
- 28.8 In dealing with the labourers and workers engaged at the Works by him or his sub-Contractors, the Contractor shall pay due regards to all recognized festivals, holidays, and traditions and cultures of the labourers. The Contractor shall also comply with all local laws and regulations pertaining to labour and expatriate personnel issued by Ministry of Home and Cultural Affairs, RGOB. The Contractor shall indemnify Employer in respect of all claims that may be made against Employer for non-compliance thereof by the Contractor. In case of non-compliance by the Contractor, the Project Manager may take such actions as may be necessary for compliance of the various labour laws and recover the costs thereof from the Contractor.
- 28.9 The Contractor shall, deliver to the Project Manager or to the Project Manager's representative, a report in such form and at such intervals as the Project Manager may prescribe, regarding the number and names of supervisory staff and different categories of labour engaged by the Contractor.

29. Contractor's Equipment

- 29.1 All the equipment brought by the Contractor onto the Site shall be deemed to be intended to be used exclusively for the execution of the Contract. The Contractor shall not remove the same from the Site without the Project Manager's consent stating that the equipment is no longer required for the execution of the Contract.
- 29.2 The Contractor shall deploy construction equipment as per agreed schedule. Provided further that in case of slow rate of progress of Works, the Contractor should supplement the agreed schedule of Contractor's Equipment with additional construction equipment so as to ensure completion of Works within Time for Completion at no extra cost to Employer.





- 29.3 If the Contractor does not make available at site the equipment committed for the Contract, the hiring charges of such equipment shall be deducted at a rate stipulated in the SCC per month for every month of absence for a period up to four months after which the deductions shall be discontinued and the Contractor's failure to produce such equipment at site shall be treated as a fundamental breach of Contract.
- 29.4 Unless otherwise specified in the Contract, upon completion of the Works, the Contractor shall remove from the Site all Contractor's Equipment brought by the Contractor onto the Site and any surplus materials remaining thereon.
- 29.5 Employer may, if requested, use its best endeavors to assist the Contractor in obtaining any government permission required by the Contractor for the export of the Contractor's Equipment imported by the Contractor for use in the execution of the Contract that is no longer required for the execution of the Contract.

E. Plant, Material and Workmanship

30. Methodology of Construction & Equipment mobilization

30.1 Methodology of construction and the work plan adopted by Contractor shall match the construction methodology/requirements specified in the Technical Specifications. The suggested minimum plant & equipment and machinery to be deployed by the Contractor for the execution of Works shall be as given in Technical Specifications. The Contractor shall arrange at his own expense all tools, plant and equipment required for execution of the Works.

31. Test and Inspection

- 31.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense carry out at the place of manufacture and/or on the Site all such tests and/or inspections of the plant, materials and any part of the Works as specified in the Contract.
- 31.2 Employer and the Project Manager or their designated representatives shall be entitled to attend the aforesaid test and/or inspection, provided that Employer shall bear all costs and expenses incurred in connection with such attendance including, but not limited to, all travelling and boarding & lodging expenses.
- 31.3 Whenever the Contractor is ready to carry out any such test and/or inspection, the Contractor shall give a reasonable advance notice of such test and/or inspection and of the place and time thereof to the Project Manager. The Contractor shall obtain from any relevant third party or manufacturer any necessary permission or consent to enable Employer and the Project Manager (or their designated representatives) to attend the test and/or inspection.
- 31.4 The Contractor shall provide the Project Manager with a certified report of the results of any such test and/or inspection.
- 31.5 If Employer or Project Manager (or their designated representatives) fails to attend the test and/or inspection, or if it is agreed between the Parties that such persons shall not do so,





- then the Contractor may proceed with the test and/or inspection in the absence of such persons, and may provide the Project Manager with a certified report of the results thereof.
- 31.6 The Project Manager may require the Contractor to carry out any test and/or inspection not required by the Contract, provided that the Contractor's reasonable costs and expenses incurred in the carrying out of such test and/or inspection shall be added to the Contract Price. Further, if such test and/or inspection impede the progress of Works and/or the Contractor's performance of its core obligations under the Contract, due allowance shall be made in respect of the Time for Completion and the other obligations so affected.
- 31.7 If any part of the Works fails to pass any test and/or inspection, the Contractor shall either rectify or replace such part of the Works and shall repeat the test and/or inspection upon giving a notice in accordance with clause 31.231.3.
- 31.8 If any dispute or difference of opinion shall arise between the Parties in connection with or arising out of the test and/or inspection of any part of the Works that cannot be settled between the Parties within a reasonable period of time, it may be referred to the Adjudicator for determination in accordance with GCC.76.1.
- 31.9 The Contractor agrees that neither the execution of a test and/or inspection of plant, equipment or any part of the Works, nor the attendance by Employer or the Project Manager, nor the issue of any test certificate pursuant to GCC.31.4, shall release the Contractor from any other responsibilities under the Contract.
- 31.10 No part of the Works or foundations shall be covered up on the Site without the Contractor carrying out any test and/or inspection required under the Contract. The Contractor shall give a reasonable notice to the Project Manager whenever any such part of the Works or foundations is ready or about to be ready for test and/or inspection; such test and/or inspection and notice thereof shall be subject to the requirements of the Contract. The Project Manager shall then without unreasonable delay carry out the test/inspection or measurement.
- 31.11 The Contractor shall uncover any part of the Works, or shall make openings in or through the same as the Project Manager may from time to time require at the Site, and shall reinstate and make good such part or parts.
- 31.12 If any part of the Works have been covered up at the Site after compliance with the requirement of 31.931.10 and are found to be executed in accordance with the Contract, the expenses of uncovering, making openings in or through, reinstating, and making good the same shall be borne by Employer, and the Time for Completion shall be reasonably adjusted to the extent that the Contractor has thereby been delayed or impeded in the performance of any of its obligations under the Contract.

F. Work Execution

32. Benchmark

32.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for the true and proper setting-out of the Works in relation to bench marks, reference marks and lines provided to it in writing by or on behalf of Employer.





32.2 If, at any time during the progress of Works, any error shall appear in the position, level or alignment of the Works, the Contractor shall forthwith notify the Project Manager of such error and, at its own expense, immediately rectify such error to the reasonable satisfaction of the Project Manager. If such error is based on incorrect data provided in writing by or on behalf of Employer, the expense of rectifying the same shall be borne by Employer. The checking of any benchmark by the Project Manager shall not relieve the Contractor of his responsibility.

33. Contractor's Supervision

33.1 The Contractor shall give or provide all necessary superintendence during the execution of Works, and the Construction Manager or its deputy shall be on the Site to provide full-time superintendence of the execution as long as the Project Manager may consider necessary for the proper fulfilment of the Contractual obligations. The Contractor shall provide and employ only technical personnel who are skilled and experienced in their respective callings and supervisory staff who are competent to adequately supervise the work at hand.

34. Quality Assurance Program

34.1 Sampling, testing and quality assurance requirements shall be as per the details given in Technical Specifications. All costs associated with testing of materials required as per Technical Specifications shall be deemed to be included in the rates/prices in the Bill of Quantities.

35. Progress Report

- 35.1 The Contractor shall monitor progress of all the activities specified in the program referred to in 2424.1 above, and supply a progress report to the Project Manager every month.
- 35.2 The progress report shall be in a form acceptable to the Project Manager and shall include, among other details: (a) percentage completion achieved vis-à-vis planned activities; and (b) where any activity is behind schedule providing reasons and likely consequences and stating the corrective action being taken. The progress report shall be supported by photographs and other written material as the Project Manager may direct.

36. Materials obtained from excavation

- 36.1 Materials of any kind obtained from excavation on the Site shall remain the property of Employer and shall be disposed of as the Project Manager may direct.
- 36.2 All fossils, coins, articles of value or antiquity, structures and other remains or things of geological or archaeological interest discovered on the Site shall be the absolute property of Employer and the Contractor shall take reasonable precautions to prevent his workmen or any other person from removing or damaging any such article or thing. Upon discovery and before removal of such items or structures, the Contractor shall immediately inform the Project Manager and shall dispose the same as per the direction of the Project Manager and at the cost of Employer.





G. Commencement, Delays and Suspension

37. Time for commencement and completion

- 37.1 The Works must be taken up and completed in all respects within the specified time of completion as mentioned in the SCC and the NoA.
- 37.2 Before the actual commencement of works, the Contractor shall submit an execution schedule of work clearly showing the materials, men and equipment to be mobilized by him to execute the works. The schedule should contain the planned monthly progress of the works for the approval of the Project Manager who shall have the authority to make additions, alternations and substitutions to such schedule in consultation with the Contractor.

38. Manner of Execution

- 38.1 The Contractor shall carry out all aspects of the Works in the manner (if any) specified in the Contract:
- a) In a proper workmanlike and careful manner with a high sense of aesthetics and in accordance with recognized good practice; and
- b) With properly equipped facilities and using non-hazardous materials, except as otherwise specified in the Contract.
- 38.2 Within thirty (30) days of the Effective Date, the Contractor shall prepare and submit in soft copies to the Project Manager for his approval a detailed construction schedule showing the sequence and interdependence of activities and work breakdown structure covering all the activities to meet milestone schedules for complete performance of work, starting from the commencement date to completion within the Time for Completion.
- 38.3 The detailed construction schedule shall include time scaled network diagrams and Gantt charts, based on calendar days. It shall be constructed to show the order in which the Contractor proposes to carry out the work and availability/requirement and use of manpower, materials and construction equipment. The Contractor shall utilize the detailed construction schedule in planning, scheduling, monitoring, coordinating and performing the Works under the Contract (including activities of subcontractors, plant vendors, material suppliers, etc.). The program so submitted by the Contractor shall be in accordance with the Contract.
- 38.4 The Project Manager and Contractor shall meet within seven (7) days of submittal of the detailed construction schedule to review and make any necessary adjustments or revisions. The Contractor shall submit the revised schedule within seven (7) days of re-submission. The process of finalizing the detailed construction schedule shall be completed within sixty (60) days from the date of issue of Notification of Award. The detailed construction schedule, once approved by Employer, shall become the baseline record schedule. The baseline detailed construction schedule shall be used for all monitoring and evaluation of Contractor's performance.





- 38.5 The Contractor shall update and revise the schedule as and when appropriate or when required by the Project Manager, but without modification in the Time for Completion and any extension granted and shall submit all such revisions to the Project Manager for his approval.
- 38.6 If at any time the Contractor's actual progress falls behind the program, or it becomes apparent that it shall so fall behind, the Contractor shall, at the request of Employer or the Project Manager, prepare and submit to the Project Manager a revised program, taking into account the prevailing circumstances, and shall notify the Project Manager of the steps being taken to expedite progress so as to attain completion of the Works within the Time for Completion, any extension thereof entitled, or any extended period as may otherwise be agreed upon between Employer and the Contractor.

39. Extension of Time for Completion

- 39.1 The Time(s) for Completion specified in the SCC shall be extended if the Contractor is delayed or impeded in the performance of any of its obligations under the Contract by reason of any of the following:
- a) Any Change in the Works as provided in **Error! Reference source not found.**49;
- b) Any occurrence of Force Majeure as provided in **Error! Reference source not found.**71;
- c) Any suspension order given by Employer under GCC.64 hereof or reduction in the rate of progress pursuant to GCC.64.2;
- d) Any changes in laws and regulations as provided in Error! Reference source not found.54.1;
- e) Any default or breach of the Contract by Employer, specifically including failure to supply agreed items or any activity, act or omission of any other Contractors employed by Employer; or
- f) Any other matter specifically mentioned in the Contract.
- 39.2 Extension of time shall be for such period as shall be fair and reasonable in all the circumstances and as shall fairly reflect the delay or impediment sustained by the Contractor.
- 39.3 Except where otherwise specifically provided in the Contract, the Contractor shall submit to the Project Manager a notice of a claim for an extension of the Time for Completion, together with particulars of the event or circumstance justifying such extension as soon as reasonably practicable after the commencement of such event or circumstance. As soon as reasonably practicable after receipt of such notice and supporting particulars of the claim, Employer and the Contractor shall agree upon the period of such extension. In the event that the Contractor does not accept Employer's estimate of a fair and reasonable time extension, the Contractor shall be entitled to refer the matter to the Adjudicator, pursuant to GCC.76.1
- 39.4 In no case the extension in Time for Completion shall be permitted for the defaults on the part of the Contractor.





40. Liquidated Damages

40.1 The Contractor shall pay liquidated damages to the Employer at the rate per day stated in the SCC for each day that the Completion Date is later than the Intended Completion Date. The total amount of liquidated damages shall not exceed the ten percent (10%) of the executed Contract Price. The Employer may deduct liquidated damages from payments due to the Contractor. Payment of liquidated damages shall not affect the Contractor's liabilities.

H. Taking Over

41. Test on Completion

- 41.1 The Contractor shall carry out the tests on completion in accordance with clause **Error!** eference source not found.31.
- 41.2 The Contractor shall provide to the Project Manager with a minimum of twenty-one (21) days' notice of the date after which the Contractor shall be ready to carry out each of the tests on completion. Unless otherwise agreed, tests on completion shall be carried out within fourteen (14) days after the notice period on such day or days, as the Project Manager shall instruct.
- 41.3 In considering the result of the tests on completion, Employer shall make allowances for the effect of any use of the Works by Employer on the performance or other characteristics of the Works. As soon as the Works, or a part, have passed any tests on completion, the Contractor shall submit a certified report of the results of these tests to Employer.
- 41.4 If the tests on completion are being unduly delayed by the Contractor, Employer may by notice require the Contractor to carry out the tests within twenty-one (21) days after receiving the notice. The Contractor shall carry out the tests on such day or days within that period as the Contractor may fix and of which he shall give notice to Employer.
- 41.5 If the Contractor fails to carry out the tests on completion within the period of twenty-one (21) days, the Employer's personnel may proceed with the tests at the risk and cost of the Contractor. The tests on completion shall then be deemed to have been carried out in the presence of the Contractor and the result of the tests shall be accepted as accurate.
- 41.6 If the Works, or a part, fail to pass the tests on completion, Employer may require the failed tests on completion on any related work, to be repeated under the same terms and conditions.
- 41.7 If the Works, or a part, fail to pass the tests on completion repeated under GCC.41.6 above, the Project Manager shall be entitled to:
- a) order further repetition of tests on completion as provided under GCC.41.6;
- b) reject the Works if the effect of the failure is to deprive Employer of substantially the whole benefits of the Works in which event Employer shall have the same remedies as are provided in GCC.46.3c);





c) issue a Taking-Over Certificate, if Employer so requests.

42. Taking Over of Works

- 42.1 The Works shall be taken over by Employer upon successful execution of Works by the Contractor in accordance with provisions of Contract.
- 42.2 On successful completion of Works or any part thereof and upon request of the Contractor for taking over the Works and issuance of Taking Over Certificate (TOC), Employer shall, within forty-five (45) days after the receipt of the Contractor's application, or within fifteen (15) days from the date of actual handing over of relevant Works, whichever is later, either issue the TOC or reject the application giving its reasons and specifying the work required to be done by the Contractor to enable the TOC to be issued.
- 42.3 TOC shall be issued to the Contractor specifying the date on which the Works or any part thereof were complete and ready for taking over, after ascertaining the following:
- a) The Works have been satisfactorily completed by the Contractor as per the provisions of Contract.
- b) The Contractor has cleared the Site of all the surplus materials, removed all scaffoldings, shuttering materials, labour huts/sheds, cleaned the dirt from Site, temporary sanitary and water supply arrangements and all electrical gadgets/ equipment/ switches, wiring, any wood work or any such item, as relevant to the Contract to the satisfaction of the Project Manager, except those required for carrying out rectification works.
- c) All the defects have been rectified to the complete satisfaction of the Project Manager.
- 42.4 Issuance of such certificates shall not relieve the Contractor of any of his obligations which otherwise were to be complied with under the terms and conditions of the Contract.
- 42.5 Notwithstanding the above-mentioned provisions, the issuance of TOC shall not be held up due to a delay in completion/ rectification of works of minor nature that do not affect the performance/ use of the Works. In such a case the Contractor shall, however, be required to give an undertaking stating that in case he fails to complete/rectify the defects within a mutually agreed period, Employer shall be at liberty to carry out the work at his risk and cost, and deduct an amount as may be considered appropriate by Employer.
- 42.6 Issuance of TOC for any part of the Works is only for the purpose of facilitating the Contractor to receive the payment for part of the Works completed and for determination of liquidated damages in respect thereof and shall not relieve the Contractor of his responsibilities under the Contract towards other parts of the Works.
- 42.7 At the time of taking over the work, the Project Manager shall ensure that the Contractor constructs a permanent information board as specified in SCC.

43. Operating and Maintenance Manuals

43.1 If "as built" Drawings and/or operating and maintenance manuals are required, the Contractor shall supply them by the dates stated in the SCC.





43.2 If the Contractor does not supply the Drawings and/or manuals by the dates stated in the SCC, or they do not receive the Project Manager's approval, the Project Manager shall withhold the amount stated in the SCC from payments due to the Contractor.

I. Defects

44. Correction of Defects

44.1 The Project Manager shall check the Contractor's work and notify the Contractor of any Defects that are found. The Project Manager shall give notice to the Contractor of any Defects before the end of the Defects Liability Period (DLP), which begins at Completion, and is defined in the SCC. Every time notice of a Defect is given; the Contractor shall correct the notified Defect within the length of time specified by the Project Manager's notice.

45. Uncorrected Defects

- 45.1 If the Contractor has not corrected a Defect within the time specified in the Project Manager's notice, the Project Manager shall assess the cost of having the Defect corrected, and the Contractor shall pay this amount to the Employer. At the option of the Employer, payment of such costs may be made in whole or in part by the Employer deducting and keeping for itself appropriate amounts from the Retention Money and/or claiming against any bank guarantee provided by the Contractor.
- 45.2 Defects Liability Period shall be extended for as long as the defects remain to be corrected.

46. Defect Liability

- 46.1 If during the Defect Liability Period any defect is found in the design, engineering, materials and workmanship of the Works executed by the Contractor, the Contractor shall promptly, in consultation and agreement with Employer regarding appropriate remedying of the defects, and at its cost, repair, replace or otherwise make good such defect as well as any damage to the Works caused by such defect.
- 46.2 The Defect Liability Period shall be as specified in the SCC. Where any part of the Works is taken over separately, the Defects Liability Period for that part shall commence on the date it was taken over.
- 46.3 If the Contractor fails to commence the work necessary to remedy such defect or any damage to the Works caused by such defect within fifteen (15) days of the intimation of the defect, and complete the remedying of such defect within the time specified by Employer, Employer reserves the right to get such work done in a manner as mentioned hereunder:
- a) carry out the work himself or by others, in a reasonable manner and at the Contractor's cost, but the Contractor shall have no responsibility for the work. The Contractor shall pay to Employer the costs reasonably incurred by Employer in remedying the defect or damage;





- b) require the Project Manager to agree or determine a reasonable reduction in the Contract Price; or
- c) if the defect or damage deprives Employer of substantially the whole benefit of the Works or any major parts of the Works, Employer may terminate the Contract as a whole, or in respect of such major part, which cannot be put to the intended use. Without prejudice to any other rights, under the Contract or otherwise, Employer shall then be entitled to recover all sums paid for the Works or for such part (as the case may be), plus financing costs and the cost of dismantling the same, clearing the site and returning plant and materials to the Contractor. If the Works or any part thereof cannot be used by reason of such defect and/or making good of such defect, the Defect Liability Period of the Works or such part, as the case may be, shall be extended by a period equal to the period during which the Works or such part cannot be used by Employer because of any of the aforesaid reasons. Upon correction of the defects in the Works or any part thereof by repair/replacement, such repair/replacement shall have the Defect Liability Period for a period of twelve (12) months from the time such replacement/repair of the Works or any part thereof has been completed.
- 46.4 On completion of the Defect Liability period of the whole of the Works or where Works have been taken over in parts, Employer shall issue a Defect Liability Certificate to the Contractor certifying the successful completion of defect liability period.

47. Measurement and Valuation

- 47.1 Except as otherwise stated in the Contract and notwithstanding local practice:
- a. Measurement shall be made of the net actual quantity of each item of the Works, and
- b. The method of measurement shall be in accordance with the BoQ, technical specifications or other applicable schedules.
- c. Whenever Employer requires any parts of the Works to be measured, reasonable notice shall be given to the Contractor's representative, who shall:
- d. Promptly either attend or send a qualified representative to assist the Project Manager in making the measurement, and
- e. Supply any particulars requested by Project Manager.
- 47.2 If the Contractor fails to attend or send a representative, the measurement made by (or on behalf of) Employer shall be accepted as accurate.
- 47.3 Except as otherwise stated in the Contract, wherever any Works are to be measured from records, these shall be prepared by Employer. The Contractor shall, as and when requested, attend to examine and agree with the records with Employer, and shall sign the same when agreed. If the Contractor does not attend, the records shall be accepted as accurate.
- 47.4 If the Contractor examines and disagrees with the records, and/or does not sign them as agreed, then the Contractor shall give notice to Employer citing the reasons/basis for the records to be allegedly inaccurate. After receiving this notice, Employer shall review the records and either confirm or vary them. If the Contractor does not so give notice to





Employer within fourteen (14) days after being requested to examine the records, they shall be accepted as accurate.

J. Variations and Adjustments

48. Contract Price Adjustment

- 48.1 The regulation and payment of Contract Price Adjustment under the Contract shall be governed by the provisions specified in the Bidding Documents. The Contract Price as awarded shall be the base Contract Price. A certain fixed percentage of the base Contract Price shall not be subject to any Contract Price Adjustment. The balance percentage to be specified shall be of identified components towards labour, material(s) and H.S. diesel oil, hereinafter called the variable component, shall be subject to Contract Price Adjustment.
- 48.2 The fixed component and the variable components shall be specified in SCC. The amount of Contract Price Adjustment payable/ recoverable for the work done during the relevant period shall be calculated as under:

$$CPA = ACP - BCP$$

Where,

CPA = Control Price Agreement

BCP = Base Contract Price

ACP = Adjusted Contract Price

ACP shall be computed as under:

$$ACP = BCP \ * \left[F + \frac{l*L_1}{L_0} + \frac{m*M_1}{M_0} + \frac{m*M_2}{M_0} \right]$$

$$F+l+m=1$$

Where:

- F = Fixed component expressed in percentage of the Base Contract Price which shall not be subject to any adjustment as quantified and stipulated in the SCC, generally 20%.
- L = Labour component expressed in percentage of the Base Contract Price which shall be subject to Price Adjustment as quantified and stipulated in the SCC, generally up to 15% to 30%
- M = Material component expressed in percentage (excluding material issued by Employer) of the Base Contract Price which shall be subject to Price Adjustment as quantified and stipulated in the SCC, generally 30% to 60%
- L = Labour Index

M = Material Index

SUBSCRIPT





- '0' = refers to the value of the above-mentioned labour/ material indices as on thirty (30) days prior to the Bid opening date.
- '1' = refers to the value of the corresponding labour / material indices as applicable for the preceding month in which the work is executed for which the adjustment is applicable, respectively.
- 48.3 The total amount payable on the Base Contract Price on account of the Contract Price Adjustment as indicated in above shall not exceed the maximum of twenty percent (20%) of the Contract Price as awarded.
- 48.4 Contract Price Adjustment(s) shall be calculated for the value of Works executed for the billing month as per agreed work schedule. For the purpose of payment/recovery of Price Adjustments, such payment/refund shall be operative and payable in accordance with the schedule completion period (including authorized extensions, if any) or actual completion period, whichever is earlier. Provided further that the Contractor would be eligible for such price adjustment claims or shall be liable for refund on the quantum of Works scheduled or the actual quantum of Works done provided always that the work done is more than or equal to the scheduled of work as per agreed work schedule.
- 48.5 The Contractor shall not be eligible for the payment of the price adjustment claims or liable for refund of Contract Price adjustment for the period beyond the schedule date of execution of Works if the Works has been delayed beyond the scheduled date(s) for reasons attributable to the Contractor. However, for quantities of Works executed beyond the scheduled dates of execution, the Contractor would be liable for refund of Contract Price Adjustment(s) for such delayed Work based on the value of the indices as applicable to the scheduled dates of execution, provided that if the indices of the actual dates of execution are lower than the indices as on scheduled dates of execution, then lower indices shall be applicable. In cases where the execution of Works is delayed for reasons attributable to Employer, the Contractor shall be eligible for payment or refund of price adjustment on such delayed execution of Works based on the indices prevailing as on the date of execution of such Works.
- 48.6 Rates of items included in the Bill of Quantities, whose quantities have varied beyond the permissible deviation limits and rates of extra items, derived and agreed from items included in the Bill of Quantities shall also be subject to price adjustment as per this clause.
- 48.7 The Contractor shall, every month after commencement of the Works, submit to the Project Manager a written notice of the changes, if any, that have occurred in the specified indices of Materials, and Labour or that of Diesel price, etc. during the previous reporting period containing the effective date of such change, with authenticated documentary evidence of the relevant applicable published indices / diesel price, etc.
- 48.8 Monthly bills for Contract Price Adjustment shall be made by the Contractor commencing first, from the month when all the relevant/ applicable indices/ diesel prices are available and not later than fifteen (15th) day of every month thereafter. The period for processing and making payment for these bills shall also be governed by the provisions as applicable to on-account/ progressive interim payments.

49. Change in Works

49.1 Introducing a Change





Employer shall have the right to propose, and subsequently require, that the Project Manager order the Contractor from time to time during the performance of the Contract to make any change, modification, addition or deletion to, in or from the Works in the form, quantity or quality of the Works or any part thereof (hereinafter called "Change"), provided that such Change falls within the general scope of the Works and does not constitute unrelated work and that it is technically practicable, taking into account both the state of advancement of the Works and the technical compatibility of the Change envisaged with the nature of the Works as specified in the Contract. Such changes shall include but not be limited to the following:

- a) Increase or decrease in the quantity of any work included in the Contract;
- b) Omission, insertion, or substitution of any item of work;
- c) Change in the drawings, designs, specifications, character or quality or kind of any such work;
- d) Change in the levels, lines, positions and dimensions of any part of the Works;
- e) Additional work of any kind necessary for the completion of the Works;
- f) Change in any specified sequence, method or timing of construction of any part of the Works.
- 49.2 Employer shall make any such variations by issuing written instructions to the Contractor and shall ensure that such variations are duly noted by the Contractor and the Project Manager. A variation made shall not, in any way, vitiate or invalid the Contract, but the effect, if any, of such variations shall be valued.
- 49.3 The Contractor shall execute and be bound by each variation, unless the Contractor promptly gives notice to Employer stating (with supporting particulars and documents) that (i) the Contractor cannot readily obtain the goods and materials required for the variation, or (ii) such variation triggers a substantial change in the sequence of the progress of the on-going works. Upon receipt of such a notice, Employer shall cancel, confirm or vary the instructions.
- 49.4 The Contractor may from time to time during its performance of the Contract, propose to Employer (with a copy to the Project Manager) any Change that the Contractor considers necessary or desirable to improve the quality, efficiency or safety of the Works. Employer may at its discretion approve or reject any Change proposed by the Contractor.
- 49.5 Notwithstanding 49.149.1 and 49.2b), change made necessary because of any default of the Contractor in the performance of its obligations under the Contract shall not be deemed to be a Change, and such change shall not result in any adjustment of the Contract Price or the Time for Completion.

50. Variations in Contract

50.1 The Contractor shall be under obligation to agree for the Changes as may be required during the execution of the Contract as per directions of the Project Manager and execute such changes at the same rates included in the Contract, provided the total effect of such changes does not exceed the limit of plus/minus twenty percent (+-20%) of the Contract





Price. Such ceiling shall however be applicable only for items of work for which rates are provided in the Contract. Notwithstanding the aforesaid provision, the quantities for individual items, if specified in the Contract, can vary to any extent. No claim for revision of rates for any individual item in the Bill of Quantities shall be admissible irrespective of the extent to which the ordered quantity may get revised (+) or (-) during the actual execution of the Works. For Change beyond twenty percent (20%) of the Contract Price, the adjustment in the rates for Bill of Quantity items shall be made as per GCC.51. The procedure on how to proceed with and execute Changes is specified in GCC.51.

51. Adjustment of the Contract Price

51.1 If reduction or increase in the Contract Price due to Change is found to be more than twenty percent (20%) of the Contract Price, the Contract Price shall be adjusted as per the rates below:

Variation in value of Work	Increase in payment for	Decrease in payment for			
	minus variation	plus variation			
Up to 20%	Nil	Nil			
Above 20% & up to 35%	6.00%	3.00%			
Above 35% & up to 60%	8.00%	4.00%			
Above 60% & up to 100%	10.00%	5.00%			
Above 100%		5.00%			

51.2 While working out the value of work for the purpose of variation, the extra items for which new rates have been paid and payment towards price adjustment; and the adjustment towards statutory variations shall not be considered.

Illustration:

a. In case of variation in value of work by (plus) + sixty percent (60%), the payment for (60-20) percent, i.e., forty percent (40%) of value of work shall be decreased by four percent (4%). The reduction in Contract rates shall commence as soon as the value of work executed reaches 120% of Contract Price.

b. In case of variation in value of work by (minus) – fifty-five percent (55%), the payment for (45-20) percent i.e., twenty-five percent (25%) of value of work shall be increased by eight percent (8%).





D=% decrease in value of work (C/A%) = -42.17%

E=% increase in payment on plus variation of -42.17% based on variation

slab=8%

F=Amount on which 8% increase in payment will be applied (42.17%- 20%) *A=446,489.47

G=Decrease in payment (E%*F) =35,719.16

Final payable=B+G=12, 00,450.60

- 51.3 The Contractor within fifteen (15) days from the receipt of an order to execute any extra item shall submit rate analysis to the Project Manager supported by documentary evidence of basic rates adopted therein; having regard to the cost of materials, actual wages of labour, and other operational costs. The analysis so provided by the Contractor shall form the basis for determination of rates for such extra items. Extra items of work which are not provided in the Bill of Quantities shall be paid on the basis of Bhutan Schedule of Rates (BSR) after adjusting such rates for the place of Works and time period elapsed after the date of BSR. If rates for such extra items are not available in BSR, the rates for such items shall be determined based on the actual expenditure relating to that item including cost of materials, fabrication/machinery handling and erection at site plus twenty percent (20%) towards overheads including profits. The price of varied items determined by the Project Manager shall be final and binding on the Contractor. No payment shall be made for the items of Works ordered to be omitted.
- 51.4 If there is delay in Employer and the Contractor coming to an agreement on the rate of varied work, provisional rates at the rate of seventy-five percent (75%) of the rates as determined by Employer shall be payable till such time as the rates are finally determined. In any case, Employer shall decide the rates within a maximum period of forty-five (45) days from the date of submission for the analysis of rates by the Contractor.
- 51.5 Items of work for which rates have been derived shall be eligible for price adjustment as per the price adjustment formula with base date as per the Contract. Rates for extra items, derived as per GCC.51.2 above, shall be eligible for price adjustment as per the price adjustment formula with base date corresponding to the date of input costs considered for working out the rates.

52. Day Work

- 52.1 For work of a minor or incidental nature not covered in the Bill of Quantities, the Project Manager may instruct that a Change shall be executed on a day work basis.
- 52.2 The Contractor shall deliver each day to the Project Manager accurate statements in duplicate which shall include the following details of the resources used in executing the previous day's work:
- a) the names, occupations and time of Contractor's employees;
- b) the identification, type and time of Contractor's Equipment and temporary works; and
- c) the quantities and types of plant and materials used.





52.3 One copy of each statement shall, if correct, or when agreed, be signed by the Project Manager and returned to the Contractor. The Contractor shall then submit priced statements of these resources to the Project Manager for further approval and inclusion in the next running bill for payment.

53. Record of costs

53.1 In any case where the Contractor is instructed to proceed with a variation prior to the determination of the adjustment to the Contract Price in respect thereof, the Contractor shall keep records of the cost of undertaking the variation and of time expended thereon. Such records shall be open to inspection by the Project Manager at all reasonable times.

54. Change in Laws and Regulations

54.1 If, after the date seven (7) days prior to the last date of Bid submission, any law, regulation, ordinance, order or by-law having the force of law is enacted, promulgated, abrogated or changed in the Kingdom of Bhutan (which shall be deemed to include any change in interpretation or application by the competent authorities) that subsequently affects the costs and expenses of the Contractor and/or the Time for Completion, the Contract Price shall be correspondingly increased or decreased, and/or the Time for Completion shall be reasonably adjusted to the extent that the Contractor has thereby been affected in the performance of any of its obligations under the Contract. However, these adjustments would be restricted to direct transactions between Employer and the Contractor. These adjustments shall not be applicable on procurement of raw materials, intermediary components etc. by the Contractor of foreign Contractor and shall also not be applicable on the bought-out items dispatched directly from sub-vendor's works to site. Notwithstanding the foregoing, such additional or reduced costs shall not be separately paid or credited if the same has already been accounted for in the price adjustment provisions where applicable, in accordance with clause GCC 49 hereunder.

K. Contract Price and Payment

55. Contract Price

- 55.1 The Contract Price shall be as specified in the Contract Agreement subject to any additions and adjustments thereto or deductions therefrom as may be made pursuant to the Contract. If specified in the SCC, the Contract Price shall be adjusted.
- 55.2 The Contract Price charged by the Contractor for the performance of the Works shall not vary from the prices quoted by the Contractor in its Bid, with the exception of any price adjustments as per the provisions of the Contract specified in the SCC.
- 55.3 Subject to 10.110.1 and **Error! Reference source not found.**71.1(h) hereof, the ontractor shall be deemed to have satisfied itself as to the correctness and sufficiency of the Contract Price, which shall, except as otherwise provided for in the Contract, cover all its obligations under the Contract.





56. Advance Payment

56.1 Mobilization Advance

- a) Employer may provide for payment of interest free mobilization advance of a maximum ten (10) percent of the Contract price on request from the Contractor, if the payment of mobilization advance is stated in the SCC.
- b) Together with the request for mobilization advance, the Contractor shall submit an unconditional bank guarantee for an equivalent amount of advance requested in accordance with the Contract agreement.
- c) The advance shall be recovered through proportionate/percentage deductions from payments made to the Contractor. All advances shall be fully recovered by the time eighty percent (80%) of the Contract is executed.

56.2 Secured Advance

- a) If stated in the SCC, Employer may provide for payment of secured advance to the Contractor against the construction materials brought to the work site as per the Contract agreement and verified by the Project Manager. The list of materials and the quantities not liable for secured advance if any, shall be specified in the SCC. In exceptional circumstances if specified in SCC, secured advance shall be given on account of plants &machineries.
- b) The payment of the secured advance shall be based on the following conditions:
- a. The materials shall be in accordance with the specifications and shall not be in excess of the requirements;
- b. A declaration shall be given by the Contractor passing on the lien on the rights of the materials to the Employer. However, the materials delivered at work site, shall be properly stored and protected against loss, damage or deterioration by the Contractor;
- c. The amount of the secured advance shall not be more than seventy-five (75%) of the cost of materials delivered at the site of works, which shall be supported by the original invoices/bills. All materials imported from other countries shall be supported by Bhutan Sales Tax receipts or customs clearance. In case of fabrication works off site, secured advance may be paid to the Contractor after site inspection is carried out by the Procuring Agency at the cost of the Contractor, submission of proof of payment and submission of work order;
- d. The advance shall be recovered through proportionate/percentage deductions from payments made to the Contractor. All advances shall be fully recovered by the time eighty percent (80%) of the Contract is executed.

57. Terms of Payment

57.1 The Contract Price shall be paid as specified in the Contract:





- a) The Contractor's request for payment shall be made to Employer in writing accompanied by invoices and documents, describing, as appropriate, the work done and related services performed in fulfillment of the obligations stipulated in the Contract.
- b) Payment shall be made promptly by Employer, no later than 30 (thirty) days after the receipt of bills and documents in accordance with GCC.57.1a), provided that the documents are compliant with all the requirements of Employer.
- c) No payment made by Employer herein shall be deemed to constitute acceptance by Employer of the works or any part(s) thereof.
- d) The currency or currencies in which payments are made to the Contractor under this Contract shall be those in which the Contract Price is expressed in the Contractor's Bid. In cases where the Bid price is in Indian Rupees or Bhutanese Ngultrum, Employer shall at its discretion make payment in either of the currencies at the exchange rate of one Ngultrum = one Indian Rupees.
- e) Wherever applicable, the release of first progressive interim payment shall be subject to submission of documentary evidence by the Contractor towards having taken the insurance policy (ies) and acceptance of the same by the Project Manager.

58. Taxes and Duties

- 58.1 The prices bid by the Contractor shall include all duties, taxes, and levies that may be levied in accordance with the laws and regulations in force as of the date 30 days prior to the closing date for submission of Bids. As such, except as otherwise specifically provided in the Contract, the Contractor shall bear and pay all taxes, duties, levies and charges assessed on the Contractor, its subcontractors or their employees by all municipal, state or national government authorities in connection with the Works in and outside of the Kingdom of Bhutan.
- 58.2 At the time of release of payment, tax shall be deducted at source (TDS) from Bhutanese Bidders and International Bidders as specified in the SCC from the gross amount of bills. Employer shall furnish necessary TDS Certificate to the Bidders, issued by the Department of Revenue & Customs, RGoB. The Contractor shall be responsible to deduct tax at source from the gross payments made to the sub-Contractors and deposit the same to the account of RGoB as per provisions of law in this regard in force from time to time.
- 58.3 If any rates of taxes or levies are increased or decreased, a new tax or levy is introduced, an existing tax is abolished, or any change in interpretation or application of any tax occurs in the course of the performance of Contract, an equitable adjustment of the Contract Price shall be made to fully take into account any such change by addition to the Contract Price or deduction therefrom, as the case may be.
- 58.4 The Contractor's staff, personnel and labour shall be liable to pay personal income tax in Bhutan in respect of such of their salaries and wages as are chargeable under the laws and regulations in force and the Contractor shall perform such duties with regard to such deductions thereof as may be imposed on him by such laws and regulations.





59. Retention Money

- 59.1 The Employer shall retain ten percent (10%) from each payment due to the Contractor in the proportion stated in the SCC until Completion of the whole of the Works as retention money.
- 59.2 The Retention Money may be returned to the Contractor upon issuance of No Defects Liability Certificate. After completion of the work, the Contractor may substitute the retention money with an unconditional bank guarantee, issued/enforceable by any financial institution in Bhutan. Such bank guarantee shall be valid until the completion of Defect Liability Period.
- 59.3 If the Contractor fails to remedy any reported defect within the Defects Liability Period, Employer shall withhold the payment or realize claims from the Retention Money, of an amount, which in the opinion of Employer, represent the cost of the defects to be remedied.
- 59.4 On completion of the Defects Liability Period, the Project Manager shall issue a no Defect Liability Certificate to the Contractor and release the retention money and/ or bank guarantee as available within fifteen (15) days from the issue of such certificate.

L. Termination

60. Termination for Employer's Convenience

60.1 Employer shall at any time terminate the Contract for any reason by giving the Contractor (and a copy to the Project Manager) a sixty (60) days prior notice of termination that refers to this clause GCC.60.1.

61. Termination for Contractor's default

- 61.1 In situations/conditions defined below, Employer shall serve a notice to the Contractor highlighting the default/limitation on the part of the Contractor and advising the Contractor to take appropriate corrective/remedial measures. If the Contractor fails to correct or to take steps to remedy the faults/limitations within fourteen (14) days of the notice served by Employer, Employer may, without prejudice to any other rights it may possess, terminate the Contract forthwith by giving a fifteen (15) days prior notice of termination with a copy to the Project Manager and its reasons thereof to the Contractor, referring to this clause GCC.61.1.
- a) If the Contractor becomes bankrupt or insolvent, has a receiving order issued against it, compounds with its creditors, or, if the Contractor is a corporation, a resolution is passed or order is made for its winding up (other than a voluntary liquidation for the purposes of amalgamation or reconstruction), a receiver is appointed over any part of its undertaking or assets, or if the Contractor takes or suffers any other analogous action in consequence of debt;
- b) If the Contractor assigns or transfers or sub-Contracts the Contract in whole or in part or any right or interest therein in violation of the provision of 55.1;





- c) If the Contractor, in the judgement of Employer has engaged in fraud or corruption, as defined in 36 in competing for or in executing the Contract;
- d) If the Contractor has abandoned or repudiated the Contract for more than 30 days;
- e) If the Contractor has, without valid reasons, failed to commence the Works promptly or has suspended (other than pursuant to 64.364.3) the progress of Contract performance for more than twenty-eight (28) days after receiving a written instruction from Employer to proceed;
- f) If the Contractor persistently fails to execute the Contract in accordance with the Contract or persistently neglects to carry out its obligations under the Contract without just cause and does not make good such failure or neglect within reasonable period even after a written notice by the Project Manager;
- g) If the Contractor refuses or is unable to provide required/sufficient materials, services, equipment or manpower to execute and complete the Works in the manner specified in the program furnished under 2424.1 at rates of progress that give reasonable assurance to Employer that the Contractor can attain completion of the Works by the Time for Completion as extended;
- h) If the liquidated damages to be levied in terms of the provisions under **Error! Reference ource not found.**40.1 has reached a maximum of ten percent (10%) of the Contract Price and it appears to the Project Manager that the Contractor is unable to complete the Works.
- 61.2 Upon receipt of the notice of termination under GCC 60 and GCC 61, the Contractor shall, either immediately or upon such date as is specified in the notice of termination:
- a) Cease all further work, except for such work as Employer may specify in the notice of termination for the sole purpose of protecting that part of the Works already executed, or any work required to leave the Site in a clean and safe condition;
- b) Terminate all subcontracts, except those to be assigned to Employer pursuant to paragraph (d)(ii) below;
- c) Remove all Contractor's Equipment from the Site, repatriate the Contractor's and its subcontractors' personnel from the Site, remove from the Site any wreckage, rubbish and debris of any kind, and leave the whole of the Site in a clean and safe condition;
- d) In addition, the Contractor, subject to the payment specified in GCC.63, shall:
- (i) Deliver to Employer the parts of the Works executed by the Contractor up to the date of termination;
- (ii) To the extent legally possible, assign to Employer all right, title and benefit of the Contractor to the Works and to the plant, equipment or material as at the date of termination, and, as may be required by Employer, in any subcontracts concluded between the Contractor and its subcontractors;
- (iii) Deliver to Employer all non-proprietary drawings, specifications and other documents prepared by the Contractor or its subcontractors as at the date of termination in connection with the Works.





61.3 Upon termination under GCC 61, Employer may expel the Contractor, and complete the Works itself or by employing any third party. Employer may, to the exclusion of any right of the Contractor over the same, take over and use any Contractor's equipment owned by the Contractor and at site in connection with the Works for such reasonable period, as Employer considers expedient for the completion of the work. However, in doing so, Employer shall pay a fair rental rate to the Contractor, bear all the maintenance costs and indemnify the Contractor for all liability including damage or injury to persons arising out of Employer's use of such equipment. Upon completion of the Works or at such earlier date as Employer thinks appropriate, Employer shall give notice to the Contractor that such Contractor's Equipment shall be returned to the Contractor at or near the Site and shall return such Contractor's Equipment to the Contractor in accordance with such notice. The Contractor shall thereafter without delay and at its cost remove or arrange removal of the same from the Site.

62. Termination by Contractor

- 62.1 The Contractor may terminate the Contract forthwith by giving a notice to Employer to that effect, referring to this clause GCC.62, if Employer becomes bankrupt or insolvent, has a receiving order issued against it, compounds with its creditors, or, being a corporation, if a resolution is passed or order is made for its winding up (other than a voluntary liquidation for the purposes of amalgamation or reconstruction), a receiver is appointed over any part of its undertaking or assets, or if Employer takes or suffers any other analogous action in consequence of debt.
- 62.2 If the Contract is terminated under GCC.62.1, then the Contractor shall immediately:
- a) Cease all further work, except for such work as may be necessary for the purpose of protecting that part of the Works already executed, or any work required to leave the Site in a clean and safe condition;
- b) Terminate all subcontracts, except those to be assigned to Employer pursuant to paragraph (d)(ii) below;
- c) Remove all Contractor's Equipment from the Site and repatriate the Contractor's and its subcontractor's personnel from the Site;
- d) In addition, the Contractor, subject to the payment specified in **Error! Reference source ot found.**63, shall
- (i) Deliver to Employer the parts of the Works executed by the Contractor up to the date of termination;
- (ii) To the extent legally possible, assign to Employer all right, title and benefit of the Contractor to the Works and to the plant, equipment or materials as of the date of termination, and, as may be required by Employer, in any subcontracts concluded between the Contractor and its subcontractors;
- (iii) Deliver to Employer all non-proprietary drawings, specifications and other documents prepared by the Contractor or its subcontractors as of the date of termination in connection with the Works.





63. Payment upon Termination

- 63.1 If the Contract is terminated because of a fundamental breach of Contract by the Contractor, the Project Manager shall issue a certificate for the value of the work done and Materials ordered less advance payments received up to the date of the issue of the certificate and less the percentage to apply to the value of work not completed, as indicated in the SCC. If the total amount due to the Employer exceeds any payment due to the Contractor, the difference shall be a debt payable by the Contractor to the Employer.
- 63.2 If the Contract is terminated for the Employer's convenience or because of a fundamental breach of Contract by the Employer, the Project Manager shall issue a certificate for the value of the work done, Materials ordered, the reasonable cost of removal of Equipment, repatriation of the Contractor's personnel employed solely on the Works, and the Contractor's costs of protecting and securing the Works, and less advance payments received up to the date of the certificate.

64. Suspension

- 64.1 Employer /Project Manager may, by notice to the Contractor, order the Contractor to suspend performance of any or all of its obligations under the Contract. Such notice shall specify the obligation of which performance is to be suspended, the effective date of the suspension and the reasons thereof. The Contractor shall thereupon suspend performance of such obligation (except those obligations necessary for the care or preservation of the Works) until ordered in writing to resume such performance by the Project Manager/ Employer.
- 64.2 If, by virtue of a suspension order given by the Project Manager/ Employer, the Contractor's performance of any of its obligations is suspended for an aggregate period of more than ninety (90) days, then at any time thereafter and provided that at that time such performance is still suspended, the Contractor may give a notice to the Project Manager requiring that Employer shall, within twenty-eight (28) days of receipt of the notice, order the resumption of such performance or request and subsequently order a Change in the Works in accordance with **Error! Reference source not found.**49, excluding the erformance of the suspended obligations from the Contract.
- 64.3 If Employer fails to do so within such period, the Contractor may, by a further notice to the Project Manager, elect to treat the suspension, where it affects only a part of the Works, as a deletion of such part of the Works in accordance with **Error! Reference source not ound.**49 or, where it affects the whole of the Works, as termination of the Contract under GCC.60.
- 64.4 Under the condition (a) and (b) below, the Contractor may, by giving fourteen (14) days' notices to Employer suspend performance of all or any of its obligations under the Contract, or reduce the rate of progress:
- a) If Employer has failed to pay the Contractor any sum due under the Contract within the specified period, or has failed to approve any invoice or supporting documents without just cause or commits a substantial breach of the Contract, the Contractor may give a notice to Employer that requires payment of such sum, requires approval of such invoice or supporting documents, or specifies the breach and requires Employer to remedy the





same, as the case may be. If Employer fails to pay such sum, fails to approve such invoice or supporting documents or give its reasons for withholding such approval, or fails to remedy the breach or take steps to remedy the breach within fourteen (14) days after receipt of the Contractor's notice; or

- b) If the Contractor is unable to carry out any of its obligations under the Contract for any reason attributable to Employer, including but not limited to Employer's failure to provide possession of or access to the Site or other areas in accordance with GCC.49, or failure to obtain any governmental permit necessary for the execution and/or completion of the Works;
- 64.5 If the Contractor's performance of its obligations is suspended or the rate of progress is reduced pursuant to this clause GCC.64, then the Time for Completion shall be extended in accordance with **Error! Reference source not found.**39.1, and any and all additional osts or expenses incurred by the Contractor as a result of such suspension or reduction shall be paid by Employer to the Contractor in addition to the Contract Price, except in the case of suspension order or reduction in the rate of progress by reason of the Contractor's default or breach of the Contract.
- 64.6 During the period of suspension, the Contractor shall not remove from the Site any plant, equipment, material or any part of the Works or any Contractor's Equipment, without the prior written consent of Employer.

M. Care of the Works and Indemnities

65. Protection of Works

- 65.1 The Contractor shall have total responsibility for protecting the Works till it is finally taken over by Employer. No claim shall be entertained by Employer for any damage or loss to the Works and the Contractor shall be responsible for the complete restoration of the damaged works/equipment to its original condition to comply with the specification and drawings.
- 65.2 The Contractor shall, in connection with the Works, provide and maintain at his own cost all lights, guards, fencing and security when and where necessary or required by Employer or by any authority for the protection of the Works or for the safety and convenience of the public or others.

66. Copyright

66.1 The copyright of all drawings, documents and other materials containing data and information furnished to Employer by the Contractor shall remain vested in the Contractor, or, if they are furnished to Employer directly or through the Contractor by any third party, including suppliers of materials, the copyright in such materials shall remain vested in such third Party.

67. Confidential Information

67.1 Employer and the Contractor shall keep confidential and shall not, without the written consent of the other Party hereto, divulge to any third party any documents, data or other





information furnished directly or indirectly by the other Party hereto in connection with the Contract, whether such information has been furnished prior to, during or following completion or termination of the Contract. Notwithstanding the above, the Contractor may furnish to its Sub-vendors such documents, data and other information as it receives from Employer to the extent required for the Sub-vendors to perform its obligations under the Contract, in which event the Contractor shall be under obligation to have a clause in the Contracts with their sub vendors regarding confidentiality similar to that provided herein.

- 67.2 Employer shall not use such documents, data and other information received from the Contractor for any purposes unrelated to the Contract. Similarly, the Contractor shall not use such documents, data and other information received from Employer for any purpose other than the design, procurement of plant and equipment, construction or such other work and services as are required for the performance of the Contract.
- 67.3 The obligation of a Party under GCC.67.1 and GCC.67.2 above, however, shall not apply to information that:
- a) Employer or the Contractor needs to share with the RGoB;
- b) Is already in public domain now, or enters the public domain during the execution of the Contract through no fault of that Party;
- c) Can be proven to have been possessed by that Party at the time of disclosure and which was not previously obtained, directly or indirectly, from the other Party; or
- d) Otherwise lawfully becomes available to that Party from a third party that has no obligation of confidentiality.
- 67.4 The above provisions of GCC.67 shall not in any way modify any undertaking of confidentiality given by either of the Parties hereto prior to the date of the Contract in respect of the performance of the Contract or any part thereof.
- 67.5 The provisions of GCC.67 shall survive completion or termination, for whatever reason, of the Contract.

68. Patent Indemnity

- 68.1 The Contractor shall, subject to Employer's compliance with GCC.68.2, indemnify and hold harmless Employer and its employees from and against any and all suits, actions or administrative proceedings, claims, demands, losses, damages, costs and expenses of any nature, including attorney's fees and expenses, which Employer may suffer as a result of any infringement or alleged infringement of any patent, utility model, registered design, trademark, copyright or other intellectual property right registered or otherwise existing at the date of the Contract by reason of:
 - a) The execution of the Works by the Contractor or the use of the Works in the Kingdom of Bhutan; and
 - b) The sale in any country of the products produced by the Works.





- 68.2 Such indemnity shall not cover any use of the Works or any part thereof other than for the purpose indicated by or reasonably to be inferred from the Contract, neither any infringement resulting from the use of the Works or any part thereof, or any products produced thereby in association or combination with any other equipment, plant or materials not supplied by the Contractor, pursuant to the Contract.
- 68.3 If any proceedings are brought or any claim is made against Employer arising out of the matters referred to in GCC.68.1, Employer shall promptly give the Contractor notice thereof, and the Contractor may at its own expense and in Employer's name conduct such proceedings or claims and any negotiations for the settlement of any such proceedings or claims.
- 68.4 If the Contractor fails to notify Employer within thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice that it intends to conduct any such proceedings or claims, then Employer shall be free to conduct the same on its own behalf at the cost of the Contractor.
- 68.5 Employer shall, at the Contractor's request, provide all available assistance to the Contractor in conducting such proceedings or claim, and shall be reimbursed by the Contractor for all reasonable expenses incurred in so doing.
- 68.6 Employer shall indemnify and hold harmless the Contractor and its employees from and against any and all suits, actions or administrative proceedings, claims, demands, losses, damages, costs and expenses of any nature, including attorney's fees and expenses, which the Contractor may suffer as a result of any infringement or alleged infringement of any patent, utility model, registered design, trademark, copyright or other intellectual property right registered or otherwise existing at the date of the Contract arising out of or in connection with any design, data, drawing, specification or other documents or materials provided or designed by or on behalf of Employer.

69. Limitations of Liability

- 69.1 In cases of gross negligence or willful misconduct:
- a) Neither Party shall be liable to the other Party, whether in Contract, tort or otherwise, for any indirect or consequential loss, damage, loss of use, loss of production, or loss of profits or interest costs. However, this exclusion shall not apply to any obligation of the Contractor to pay liquidated damages to Employer; and
- b) The aggregate liability of the Contractor to Employer, whether under the Contract, in tort or otherwise, shall not exceed the total Contract Price. However, this limitation shall not apply to the cost of repairing or repairing defective works, or to any obligation of the Contractor to indemnify Employer with respect to patent infringement.
- 69.2 In all cases, the Party claiming a breach of Contract or a right to be indemnified in accordance with the Contract shall be obliged to take all reasonable measures to mitigate the loss or damage.





70. Indemnification Employer

- 70.1 The Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless Employer and its employees from and against any and all suits, actions or administrative proceedings, claims, demands, losses, damages, costs, and expenses of whatsoever nature, including attorney's fees and expenses, in respect of the death or injury of any person or loss of or damage to any property (other than the Works whether accepted or not), arising in connection with the execution of Works and caused due to the negligence of the Contractor or its subcontractors, or its employees, or agents. For any injury, death or damages to property caused by the negligence of Employer, its other Contractors, employees, or agents Employer shall be responsible.
- 70.2 If any proceedings are brought or any claim is made against Employer that might subject the Contractor to liability under GCC.70.1, Employer shall promptly give the Contractor a notice thereof and the Contractor shall at its own expense and in the Employer's name conduct such proceedings or claim and any negotiations for the settlement of any such proceedings or claim.
- 70.3 If the Contractor fails to notify Employer within twenty-eight (28) days after receipt of such notice that it intends to conduct any such proceedings or claim, then Employer shall be free to conduct the same on its own behalf. Unless the Contractor has so failed to notify Employer within the twenty-eight (28) day period, Employer shall make no admission that may be prejudicial to the defense of any such proceedings or claim.
- 70.4 Employer shall, at the Contractor's request, afford all available assistance to the Contractor in conducting such proceedings or claim, and shall be reimbursed by the Contractor for all reasonable expenses incurred in so doing.
- 70.5 Employer shall indemnify and hold harmless the Contractor and its employees and subcontractors from any liability for loss of or damage to property of Employer, other than the Works not yet taken over, that is caused by fire, explosion or any other perils, in excess of the amount recoverable from insurances procured under GCC.72, provided that such fire, explosion or other perils were not caused by any act or failure of the Contractor.
- 70.6 The Party entitled to the benefit of an indemnity under this clause shall take all reasonable measures to mitigate any loss or damage, which has occurred. If the Party fails to take such measures, the other party's liabilities shall be correspondingly reduced.

71. Exceptional Event (Force Majeure)

- 71.1 "Force Majeure" shall mean any unavoidable event beyond the reasonable control of Employer or of the Contractor, as the case may be, and which has impeded the progress of work unreasonably and shall include, without limitation to the following:
- a) War, hostilities or warlike operations whether a state of war be declared or not, invasion, act of foreign enemy and civil war;
- b) Rebellion, terrorism, revolution, sabotage by persons other than the Contractor's personnel, insurrection, mutiny, usurpation of civil or military government, conspiracy, riot, civil commotion and terrorist acts;





- c) Riot, commotion, disorder, strike or lockout by persons other than the Contractor's personnel;
- d) Munitions of war, explosive materials, ionizing radiation or contamination by radioactivity, except as may be attributable to the Contractor's use of such munitions, explosives, radiation or radio-activity;
- e) Confiscation, nationalization, mobilization, commandeering or requisition by or under the order of any government or de jure or de facto authority or ruler or any other act or failure to act of any government authority;
- f) Embargo, import restriction, port congestion, industrial dispute, shipwreck, shortage or restriction of power supply, epidemics/pandemic, quarantine and plague;
- g) Natural catastrophes such as earthquake, hurricane, typhoon, volcanic activity, fire, landslide or flood;
- h) The physical conditions or artificial obstructions on the Site.
- 71.2 If a force majeure situation arises, the Bidder shall notify the Employer in writing within seven (7) days of such conditions and the cause thereof along with documentary or pictorial evidence acceptable to the Employer. Unless otherwise directed by the Employer in writing, the Bidder shall continue to perform its obligation.
- 71.3 The Party who has given such notice shall be excused from the performance or punctual performance of its obligations under the Contract for so long as the relevant event of Force Majeure continues and to the extent that such Party's performance is prevented, hindered or delayed. The Time for Completion shall be extended in accordance with Error! Reference source not found.39.
- 71.4 The Party or Parties affected by the event of Force Majeure shall use reasonable efforts to mitigate the effect thereof upon its or their performance of the Contract and to fulfil its or their obligations under the Contract so far as reasonably practicable.
- 71.5 Delay or non-performance by either Party hereto caused by the occurrence of any event of Force Majeure after the Contract has become effective shall not:
- a) Constitute a default or breach of the Contract;
- b) Give rise to any claim for damages or additional cost or expense occasioned thereby.
- 71.6 If the performance of the Contract is substantially prevented, hindered or delayed for a single period of more than sixty (60) days or an aggregate period of more than one hundred and twenty (120) days on account of one or more events of Force Majeure during the currency of the Contract, the Parties shall attempt to develop a mutually satisfactory solution, failing which the dispute shall be resolved in accordance with GCC.O.
- 71.7 Notwithstanding GCC.71.5, Force Majeure shall not apply to any obligation of Employer to make payments to the Contractor herein.





72. Insurance

72.1 The Contractor shall provide, in the joint names of the Employer and the Contractor, insurance cover from the date of commencement of the Works to the end of the respective periods specified below, in the amounts and deductibles stated in the SCC for the following events:

S1.	Nature of insurance	Period of insurance				
		coverage				
i	Loss of or damage to the Works including	Up to the date of Taking				
	Employer issued materials, if any	Over of the last Works				
.: 11	Loss of or damage to the Contractor's tools and	amage to the Contractor's tools and Up to the date of Taking				
	plant	Over of the last Works				
111	Loss of or damage to the property other than Up to the completion of the					
	Works including those of third parties Defects Liability Period					
iv	Injury or death of personnel belonging to the Upto the completion of the					
	Contractor, Employer or any other party	Defects Liability Period				

The insurance policy for (iv) above shall be taken from Bhutanese insurance companies.

- 72.2 Policies and certificates for insurance shall be delivered by the Contractor to the Project Manager for the Project Manager's approval before the start date. All such insurance shall provide for compensation to be payable in the types and proportions of currencies required to rectify the loss or damage incurred. Payments received from insurers shall be used for the rectification of loss or damage.
- 72.3 If the Contractor does not provide any of the policies and certificates required, the Employer may affect the insurance which the Contractor should have provided and recover the premiums the Employer has paid from payments otherwise due to the Contractor or, if no payment is due, the payment of the premiums shall be a debt due from the Contractor to the Employer.
- 72.4 Alterations to the terms of insurance shall not be made without the approval of the Project Manager. Both parties shall comply with any conditions of the insurance policies.

N. Claims

73. Contractor's Claims

- 73.1 If the Contractor considers himself to be entitled to any extension of the Time for Completion and/or any additional payment, under any clause of GCC.N or otherwise in connection with the Contract, the Contractor shall give notice to Employer, describing the event or circumstances giving rise to the claim. The notice shall be given as soon as practicable, and not later than thirty (30) days after the Contractor became aware, or should have become aware, or the event or circumstance.
- 73.2 If the Contractor fails to give notice of a claim within such period of thirty (30) days, the Time for Completion shall not be extended, the Contractor shall not be entitled to additional payment, and Employer shall be discharged from all liability in connection with the claim. Otherwise, the following provisions of this sub-clause shall apply.





- 73.3 The Contractor shall also submit any other notices which are required by the Contract, and supporting particulars for the claim, as relevant to such event or Circumstances.
- 73.4 The Contractor shall keep such contemporary records as may be necessary to substantiate any claim, either on the Site or at another location acceptable to the Project Manager. Without admitting the Employer's liability, the Project Manager may, after receiving any notice under this sub-clause, monitor the record-keeping and/or instruct the Contractor to keep further contemporary records. The Contractor shall permit the Project Manager to inspect all these records, and shall (if instructed) submit copies to the Project Manager.
- 73.5 Within forty-two (42) days after the Contractor became aware (or should have become aware) of the event or circumstances giving rise to the claim, or within such other period as may be proposed by the Contractor and approved by the Project Manager, the Contractor shall send to the Project Manager a fully detailed claim which includes full supporting particulars of the basis of the claim and for the extension of time and/or additional payment claimed. If the event or circumstance giving rise to the claim has a continuing effect:
- a) this fully detailed claim shall be considered as interim;
- b) the Contractor shall send further interim claims at monthly intervals, giving the accumulated delay and/or amount claimed, and such further particulars as the Project Manager may reasonably require; and
- c) the Contractor shall send a final claim thirty (30) days after the end of the effects resulting from the event or circumstances, or within such other period as may be proposed by the Contractor and approved by the Project Manager.
- 73.6 Within forty-two (42) days after receiving a claim or any further particulars supporting a previous claim, or within such other period as may be proposed by the Project Manager and approved by the Contractor, the Project Manager shall respond with approval, or with disapproval and detailed comments. He may also request any necessary further particulars, but shall nevertheless give his response on the principals of the claim within such time.
 - 73.7 Each payment certificate shall include such amounts for any claim as have been reasonably substantiated as due under the relevant provision of the Contract. Unless and until the particulars supplied are sufficient to substantiate the whole of the claim, the Contractor shall only be entitled to payment for such part of the claims, as he has been able to substantiate.
 - 73.8 The Project Manager shall proceed to determine (i) the extension (if any) of the Time for Completion (before or after its expiry), and/or (ii) the additional payment (if any) to which the Contractor is entitled under the Contract.
 - 73.9 The requirements of this sub-clause are in addition to those of any other sub-clause, which may apply to a claim. If the Contractor fails to comply with this or any other sub-clause in relation to any claim, any extension of time and/or additional payment shall take account of the extent (if any) to which the failure has prevented or prejudiced proper investigation of the claim, unless the claim is excluded under the second paragraph of this sub-clause.





74. Claims towards idling of resources

- 74.1 Components of claim admissible hereunder towards additional cost incurred by the Contractor due to idling of resources in connection with execution of Contract for reasons given hereunder shall be evaluated by the Project Manager:
 - a) Employer does not give possession to Site or a part of the Site free of all encumbrances by the Site possession date stated in the SCC;
 - b) Employer modifies the schedule of other Contractors in a way which affects the works of the Contractor under the Contract;
 - c) Employer's representatives' does not issue Drawings, Technical Specifications or instructions required for the execution of Works as per agreed schedule;
 - d) Other Contractors or Employer does not work within the dates stated in the Contract that cause delay or extra work to the Contractor.
 - 74.2 The evaluation of compensation towards idling of resources done by the Project Manager shall be final and binding on the Contractor. The procedure as provided in GCC.72.1 for settlement of claims shall also apply for such claims.

75. Early Warning

74.3 The Contractor shall warn the Project Manager in writing at the earliest of specific likely future events or circumstances that may adversely affect the quality of the work, increase the Contract Price or delay the execution of the Works. The Project Manager may require the Contractor to provide an estimate of the expected effect of the future event or circumstance on the Contract Price and Completion Date. The estimate shall be provided by the Contractor not later than 30 days after the Contractor became aware, or should have become aware, of the event or circumstance. If the Contractor fails to give notice of a claim within such period of 30 days, the Employer may be discharged from all liability in connection with the claim.

O. Disputes and Arbitrations

76. Amicable Settlement

76.1 If any dispute of any kind whatsoever arises between Employer and the Contractor in connection with or arising out of the Contract, including without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, any question regarding its existence, validity or termination, or the execution of the works – whether during the progress of the works or after their completion and whether before or after the termination, abandonment or breach of the Contract – the parties shall seek to resolve any such dispute or difference by mutual consultation.





77. Dispute Resolution

- 77.1 In case of dispute, the objecting party may file a written Notice of dispute to the other Party providing in detail the basis of the dispute. The Party receiving the Notice of Dispute shall consider it and respond in writing within 14 days after receipt. If that Party fails to respond within 14 days, or the dispute cannot be amicably settled within 14 days following the response of that Party, clause GCC.77.1 shall apply.
- 77.2 Any dispute between the Parties as to matters arising pursuant to this Contract that cannot be settled amicably according to clause GCC.77.1 and GCC.77.1 may be submitted by either Party for settlement in accordance with the provisions specified in the SCC.
- 77.3 Notwithstanding any reference to the settlement of dispute settlement herein:
- a) The Parties shall continue to perform their respective obligations under the Contract unless they otherwise agree; and
- b) Employer shall pay the Contractor any monies due to it.





SECTION V - SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT





Special Conditions of Contract

The following Special Conditions of Contract (SCC) shall supplement and/or amend the General Conditions of Contract (GCC). Whenever there is a conflict, the provisions herein shall prevail over those in the GCC. [The Employer shall select and insert the appropriate wording using the sample below or other acceptable wording and delete the text in italics.]

GCC Clause Ref., if any	Particulars
1.1(xxvii)	The Project Manager shall be: Cheni Zangmo ITO Manager Dungsam Cement Corporation Limited Telephone no# 17461171
1.1(xxix)	The Site is located at Marungri Mines, DCCL
1.1(xxxi)	Completion of Works shall be attained within Three (3) months from the date of Contract Signing.
2.5	The applicable Incoterms edition shall be of: incoterms 2020 and Incoterms 2010 where earlier is not applicable.
3.2	For notices, the addresses shall be: For the Employer: Cheni Zangmo ITO Manager Dungsam Cement Corporation Limited Telephone no# 17461171
10.4	The list of manpower, equipment, raw material etc. to be provided by the Employer: None
11.6	The information board shall be Not Applicable
12.1 & 12.3	The amount of the Performance Security shall be: 10% of the contract Price valid for 30days beyond completion date. The types of acceptable Performance Securities are: (i) Unconditional bank guarantee issued by a reputable financial institution enforceable in any banks in Bhutan (ii) Cash warrant, or (iii) Demand Draft
12.2	For Contracts not deducting retention money, the Contractor shall extend the validity of the performance security until 30 days beyond defect liability period (DLP) before the release of final bill payment: Not Applicable.
22.1	The temporary utilities to be provided by Employer are: None
27.1	Key Personnel: None The amount to be deducted for the key personnel not employed by the Contractor for each personnel shall be: Not Applicable





29.3	The amount to be deducted for the equipment not available at site is: Not Applicable.							
40.1	The applicable rate for liquidated damages for delay shall be: 0.1% of the contract price per day. The maximum amount of liquidated damages shall be: 10% of the contract price							
42.7	The p	ermanent information board shall	be: Not Applicable	e.				
44.1 & 46.2		Defect Liability Period shall be: 12 pletion Certificate.	months from the	e date of issue to				
48.2	Not A	pplicable.						
55.1	The C	ontract Price <mark>is not</mark> adjustable.						
56.1a)	of th guara	Nobilization Advance Payment shall se Contract Price against the sente of the sent	ubmission of un	conditional bank				
56.2a)	of ma origin The C const	ecured advance shall not be more sterials delivered at the site of world invoices/bills. Contractor shall be entitled to securuction materials: Not Applicable	rk, which shall be	supported by the				
	In exc	ceptional circumstances, secured ac s & machineries: Not Applicable.	dvance shall be giv	ven on account of				
58.2	-	resent rate of tax deducted at souce is: 2%	urce (TDS) of the	gross value of the				
72.1	The n	ature and content, amounts and c	leductibles on ins	urance shall be as				
	SN Insurance Amount Deductible Insured							
	1	Loss of or damage to the Works including Employer issued materials, if any	110% of the cost of Works	Minimum as per insurance policy				
	2	Loss of or damage to the Contractor's tools and plant		Minimum as per insurance policy				
	3	Loss of or damage to the property other than Works including those of third parties	·	Not applicable				





	4	Injury or death of personnel As permissible Not applicable belonging to the Contractor, Employer or any other party			
77.2	Institution whose arbitration procedures shall be used: For Contracts with Bhutanese Contractors				
	All disputes arising in connection with the present Contract shall be finally resolved by arbitration in accordance with the rules and procedures of the Alternate Dispute Resolution Act 2013.				





SECTION VI – TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS





1. Scope:

- 1. For the supply, installation and commissioning of LAN (ADM, Packing, CRR & Mines) as per the list attached in *ANNEXSURE*
- 2. For the Supply, installation and commissioning of IP phone shall be as per the list attached.
- 3. Installation, configuration, integration and all works related must be carried out.
- 4. Suppliers are required to connect the LAN I/O box at each individual endpoint
- 5. If laying fiber cable is necessary at various locations, suppliers are responsible for the installation of the cable, while DCCL will supply the fiber cable.
- 6. Transportation of all the required material to DCCL office
- 7. The suppliers shall submit the acceptance test report for both the network and IP phone after the completion of verification and testing.
- 8. The supplier is obligated to provide the completion report in conjunction with the training. The completion report shall include
 - a) Network Design Diagram
 - b) Detail Installation report at all the sites Configuration of the equipment
 - c) Training report
 - d) Acceptance Test report
- 9. All items listed in the tender document will be evaluated under one package.
- 10. Dismantling of the existing or old lining once new LAN is commissioned (ADM, Packing, CCR & Mines).

1.1 Current set up and installation of LAN

The bidder can or may visit DCCL office (during office hour) prior to the submission of bids to understand the current environment and setup.

2. Delivery and execution schedule:

You are required to supply the above-mentioned materials and execute the work within immediate effect and shall be completed within 90days from the date of issue of work order. **3.**

3. Specific Terms and Conditions for the equipment

- 1. The supplier must furnish the features mentioned in its detailed specification document.
- 2. The quoted rate must include all accessories required for installation of LAN and IP phone.
- 3. It should be accompanied by minimum warranty period from the date of actual delivery to this office.
- 4. The suppliers must be able to provide any required maintenance service free of charge during the warranty period
- 5. If the equipment ceases to function during the warranty period, the suppliers must replace it with the new set without any cost to this office.
- 6. The suppliers must reach the LAN I/O box to the individual user's desk.
- 7. If required for electrical socket, the suppliers should bear the cost.
- 8. If required for laying of fibre cable at different location, suppliers should lay the fiber cable and DCCL will provide the fibre cable.





9. The bidders shall not quote the end of the sale and end of support by the OEM

4. Mandatory Evaluation Criteria

- 1. Possession of a valid Trade License and Tax Clearance Certificate.
- 2. The bidder must be an established IT firm or a related entity with a market presence of 6 years or more.
- 3. Bidders are required to possess pertinent project experience, supported by the submission of Completion/Concerned letters from clients as substantiating evidence."
- 4. The project team shall meet the following requirements:

National Network Engineer lead

- ✓ Minimum Qualification- Bachelor's Degree in computer Science/IT/Computer Engineering.
- ✓ Certification (if any)-CCNA or CCIE or CISSP or CISM
- ✓ Hands-on Experience in networking
- ✓ Minimum of 5 years of work experience
- ✓ CV with work experience for the proposed engineer should be submitted along with the bidding document.

National Network Administrators/Engineers

- ✓ Minimum qualification- Diploma in IT/Electrical/ Electronic
- ✓ Hands-on Experience in networking
- ✓ Minimum of 5 years of work experience
- ✓ CV with work experience for the proposed engineers should be submitted along with the bidding document.

National Network Technician:

- ✓ Minimum qualification: Certificate in IT/Electrical/Electronic
- ✓ Hands-on Experience in networking
- ✓ Minimum of 5 years of work experience
- ✓ CV with work experience for the proposed engineers should be submitted along with the bidding document









SECTION VII - CONTRACT FORMS

(Form No. 1 to Form No. 4)

Applicable Forms from this Contract Forms section shall either be submitted by the successful Bidder or by Employer, post award of Contract.





FORM 1: NOTIFICATION OF AWARD

[Insert date]

To: [name and address of the Contractor]

Sub: Notification of Award for

Ref: Our NIT No: (insert number and reference of the NIT)

Dear Sir or Madam,

With reference to your Bid dated [insert date] for execution of the [insert name of the Contract and identification number, as given in the SCC] for the Contract Price of the equivalent of [insert amount in numbers and words] [insert name of currency], as corrected and modified in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders is hereby accepted by our Agency.

[Insert one of the following (x) or (y) options if applicable]

- (x) We accept that [insert name proposed by Bidder] be appointed as the Adjudicator.
- (y) We do not accept that [insert name proposed by Bidder] be appointed as Arbitrator, and by sending a copy of this Notification of Award to [insert name of the Appointing Authority] we are hereby requesting [insert name], the Appointing Authority, to appoint the Arbitrator in accordance with SCC 7.

The Contract in duplicate is attached hereto. Kindly be advised of the following:

- a) Please confirm your acceptance of this Notification of Award by signing and dating both copies of it, and returning one copy to us no later than 15 days from the date hereof;
- b) Please report to this office to sign the formal Contract Agreement within 15 (fifteen) days of the date of this Notification of Award.
- c) Prior to the signing of Contract Agreement, you are required to submit performance security in the form of a Bank Guarantee/demand draft/cash warrant as per ITB clause 42 and GCC clause 17. The performance security may be submitted in advance or at the time of signing the contract agreement. The bank guarantee/demand draft/cash warrant should be in favour of (insert appropriate name and designation).
- d) The stipulated commencement of the work shall be reckoned from the date of Contract signing.

Kindly acknowledge the receipt of this letter.

Yours sincerely, [xyz]





FORM 2: CONTRACT AGREEMENT

This agreement is made the [insert day] day of [insert month], [insert year] between [insert name and address of Employer] (hereinafter called "the Employer"), of the one part, and [insert name and address of Contractor] (hereinafter called "the Contractor") of the other part.

Whereas the Employer desires that the Contractor execute [name and identification number of Contract] (hereinafter called "the Works") and the Employer has accepted the Bid by the Contractor for the execution and completion of such Works and the remedying of any defects therein.

The Employer and the Contractor agree as follows:

- a) In this Contract, words and expressions shall have the same meanings as are respectively assigned to them in the contract documents referred to.
- b) The following documents shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part of this Agreement:
 - i. The Notification of Award
 - ii. The Bid Submission Form
 - iii. The addenda Nos. (insert addenda number if any)
 - iv. The General Conditions of Contract
 - v. The Special Conditions of Contract
 - vi. The Technical Specifications
- vii. The Drawings
- viii. The Schedules
- c) In consideration of the payments to be made by the Employer to the Contractor as hereinafter mentioned, the Contractor hereby covenants with the Employer to execute and complete the Works and remedy any defects therein in conformity in all respects with the provisions of the Contract.
- d) The Employer hereby covenants to pay the Contractor in consideration of the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of defects therein, the Contract Price or such other sum as may become payable under the provisions of the Contract at the times and in the manner prescribed by the Contract.
- e) This Agreement shall prevail over all other Contract documents.

In Witness whereof the parties thereto have caused this Agreement to be executed on the day, month and year indicated above.

Sign & Seal of Contractor

Sign & Seal of witness of Contractor:





Sign & seal of Employer authorized representative:		
Binding signature of Employer's representative's signature:		





FORM 3: BANK GUARANTEE FOR CONTRACT PERFORMANCE SECURITY

[To be provided on the relevant legal document, as per applicable law, in the country of execution]

Bank Guara	ntee No
Date	
To [Employer's Address]	
Dear Sir/Madam,	
In consideration of Employer's name (hereinafter referred to as Emp shall unless repugnant to the context or meaning thereof include its success assigns) having awarded to M/s with its Regist	sors, administrators and ered/Head Office at which expression shall essors, administrators, and No
We	expression shall, unless istrators, executors and demand any and all the Bank Guarantee and its onth/year) without any ence to the Contractor. Sinding notwithstanding anding before anyCourt,
Employer shall have the fullest liberty without affecting in any way the lial	oility of the Bank under

Employer shall have the fullest liberty without affecting in any way the liability of the Bank under this guarantee from time to time to extend the time for performance of the Contract by the Contractor. Employer, shall have the fullest liberty, without affecting this guarantee to postpone from time totime the exercise of any powers vested in Employer or of any right which they might have against the Contractor and to exercise the same at any time and any manner, and either to enforce or to forbear to enforce any covenants, contained or implied in the Contract between Employer and the Contractor or any other course of remedy or security available to Employer. The Bank shall not be released of its obligations under these presents by any exercise by Employer of its liberty with reference to the matters aforesaid or any of them or by reason or any other acts of omission or commission on the part of Employer or any other indulgence shown by Employer or by any other matter or thing whatsoever which under the law would but for these provisions have the effect of relieving the Bank.





the Bank as a Principal debtor, in the first instance without proceeding against the Contractor and notwithstanding any security or other guarantee that Employermay have in relation to the Contractor's liabilities. Notwithstanding anything contained herein above, our liability under this guarantee is restricted to and shall remain in force up to and including and shall be extended from time to time for such period, as may be desired by M/s on whose behalf this guarantee has been given. All rights of Employer under this guarantee shall be forfeited and the Bank shall be relieved and discharged from all liabilities after the above-mentioned date or from the extended date. Witness: (Signature) (Signature) (Name) (Name) (Official Address) (Official Address) Authorized vide Power of Attorney No..... Date..... (@) This date shall be ninety (90) days beyond the scheduled end of Defect Liability Note:

The Bank also agrees that Employer at its option shall be entitled to enforce this guarantee against



Period of the last equipment covered under the Contract

(#) Complete mailing address of the Head Office of the Bank to be given



FORM 4: BANK GUARANTEE FOR ADVANCE PAYMENT

[To be provided on the relevant legal document, as per applicable law, in the country of execution]
Bank Guarantee No
Date
To
[Employer's address]
Dear Sir/Madam,
In consideration of the Employeral Corporation Ltd (hereinafter referred to as Employer) which
expression shall unless repugnant to the context or meaning thereof include its successors,
administrators, executors and assigns having awarded to M/s with its
registered/Head Office at (Here-in-after referred to as the Contractor)
which expression shall unless repugnant to the context or meaning thereof, include its successors,
administrators, executors and assigns, a Contract by issue of Employer's Notification of Award
No dated and the same having been unequivocally accepted by the
Contractor resulting in a 'Contract', dated valued at
currency in words], [amount in figures], and [amount of local currency in words], [amount in figures]
for (insert Scope of Contract) (Hereinafter called the Contract) and Employer
having agreed to make advance payment to the Contractor for performance of the above Contract
amounting to[insert currency and amount of the advance], as an advance against Bank
Guarantee to be furnished by the Contractor.

Employer shall have the fullest liberty without affecting in any way the liability of the Bank under this guarantee from time to time to vary the advance or to extend the time for performance of the Contract by the Contractor. Employer shall have the fullest liberty, without affecting this guarantee to postpone from time to time the exercise of any powers vested in them or of any right which they might have against the Contractor and to exercise the same at any time in any manner and either to enforce or to forbear to enforce any covenants contained or implied in the Contract between the Employer and the Contractor or any other course or remedy or security available to Employer. The Bank shall not be released of its obligations underthese presents by any exercise by Employer of its liberty with reference to the matters aforesaid or any of them or by reason of any other act or forbearance or other acts of omission or commission on the part of Employer or any other indulgence shown by Employer or by any other matter or thing whatsoever which under law would, but for this provision, have the effect of relieving the Bank.





The Bank also agrees that Employer at its option shall be entitled to enforce this Guarantee against the Bank as a principal debtor, in the firstinstance without proceeding against the Contractor and notwithstanding any security or other guarantee that Employer may have in relation to the Contractor's liabilities.

Notwithstanding anything contained hereinabove our liability under this guarantee is limited b [insert currency and amount of the advance]					
All rights of Employer under this guarantee shadischarged from all liabilities after the above-materials.	all be forfeited and the Bank shall be relieved and entioned date or from the extended date.				
Dated thisday of	20 at				
Witness:					
(Signature)	(Signature)				
(Name)	(Name)				
(Official Address)	(Official Address)				
	Attorney as per				
	Power of Attorney No:				
	Date				



the last Facility covered under the Contract.

Note:



(@) This date shall be ninety (90) days beyond the schedule date of Completion of

Refer Attachment for Bill of Quantities

BOQ for IP Phones

SL No	Description	Qty	Unit Price	Total
1	PRI Gateway	1		
2 Server IPPBX system with 1 PRI line and 16 extensions		1		
3	Operator console IP phone	1		
4	IP Phone	10		
5	Fiber to E1 converter	2		
6	Supply and Installation of Other Accessories	LUMP SUM		
Total				

BOQ for Networking

Sl. No.	Materials	Description	Uo M	Qty	Unit Price	Total
1	Layer 3:24x1Gbe + 4x1G SFP port Managed Switch (Brand Cisco)	24 x 1G SFP ports. 4 x 1G SFP ports. DRAM: 8 GB. Flash: 16 GB. Switching capacity: 56 Gbps. Must support Netflow, QoS, ACL,Static and Dynamic Routing and also support vlan ids upto 4094. Must support MAC upto 32000. Forwarding rate: 154.76 Mpps. Jumbo frames: 9198 bytes. Must Support Both L2 and L3 Features.	nos.	1		





2	Layer 2: 24x1Gbe + 4x1 SFP port Managed Switchs (Brand Cisco)	24x1Gb PoE+ ports. 4x1G SFP ports. Layer 2 switching. VLAN Support upto 4096. Perpetual PoE+ support with a power budget of up to 120W. CLI and/or intuitive web UI manageability options. Network monitoring through sampled flow (sFlow). Security with 802.1X support for connected devices, Switched Port Analyzer (SPAN), and Bridge Protocol Data Unit (BPDU) Guard. Compact fanless models available with a depth of less than 13 inches (33 cm). Device management support with over-the-air access via Bluetooth, Simple Network. Management Protocol (SNMP), RJ-45, or USB console access. Reliability with a higher Mean Time Between Failures (MTBF) and an enhanced limited lifetime warranty support(E-LLW)	nos.	6	
	Layer 2: 16x1Gbe + 2x1 SFP port Managed Switchs (Brand Cisco)	16x1Gb PoE+ ports. 2x1G SFP ports. Layer 2 switching. VLAN Support upto 4096. Perpetual PoE+ support with a power budget of up to 120W. CLI and/or intuitive web UI manageability options. Network monitoring through sampled flow (sFlow). Security with 802.1X support for connected devices, Switched Port Analyzer (SPAN), and Bridge Protocol Data Unit (BPDU) Guard. Compact fanless models available with a depth of less than 13 inches (33 cm). Device management support with over-the-air access via Bluetooth, Simple Network. Management Protocol (SNMP), RJ-45, or USB console access. Reliability with a higher Mean Time Between Failures (MTBF) and an enhanced limited lifetime warranty support(E-LLW)	nos.	6	





	1			1	ı	
	Layer 2: 8x1Gbe + 2x1 SFP port Managed Switchs (Brand Cisco)	8x1Gb PoE+ ports. 2x1G SFP ports. Layer 2 switching. VLAN Support upto 4096. Perpetual PoE+ support with a power budget of up to 120W. CLI and/or intuitive web UI manageability options. Network monitoring through sampled flow (sFlow). Security with 802.1X support for connected devices, Switched Port Analyzer (SPAN), and Bridge Protocol Data Unit (BPDU) Guard. Compact fanless models available with a depth of less than 13 inches (33 cm). Device management support with over-the-air access via Bluetooth, Simple Network. Management Protocol (SNMP), RJ-45, or USB console access. Reliability with a higher Mean Time Between Failures (MTBF) and an enhanced limited lifetime warranty support(E-LLW)	nos.	2		
3	Wall Rack 9U	9U 19", 480x600x440 mm, (H x W x D), 370mm working depth, (distance from bars to rear panel), wall- mounted, welded body, removable sides, 4mm toughened glass, top + bottom, 50 x 260mm with PDU, Fan, Cable Manager and Bolt and nut.	nos.	5		
4	Cat 6 ethernet cable	Supports gigabit ethernet (1000 Base-T) standard suitable for noisy environments, high EMI interference surroundings and complies to the requirement of ANSI/TIA-568-C.2 and ISO/IEC 11801. Performance verified upto 250MHz. UL Listed and ETL Verified.	305 m/b ox	8		
5	Fiber optic patch panel 6 port	6 Port Fiber Patch Panel SC Pigtail ODF 1U Optical Fiber Terminal Box Optical Fiber Distribution Frame with duplex multimode adapter	nos.	11		
6	Fiber optic patch panel 16 port	16 Port Fiber Patch Panel SC Pigtail ODF 1U Optical Fiber Terminal Box Optical Fiber Distribution Frame with duplex multimode adapter	nos.	1		





7	Fiber optic patch panel 24 port	24 Port Fiber Patch Panel SC Pigtail ODF 1U Optical Fiber Terminal Box Optical Fiber Distribution Frame with duplex multimode adapter	nos.	1	
8	24 port patch panel	180 Degree Punch Down Design 1U Patch Panel to Mount In any Standard Rack Easy Port Labeling Identification Provision Accommodates 22~26 AWG Stranded and Solid Wires	nos.	10	
9	Multimode SFP Transceiver Module, 1.25G SFP Transceiver Module, Dual Fiber LC SFP Transceiver	Up to 1.25Gb/s Data Links Hot-Pluggable Duplex LC connector Up to 2km on 50/125μm MMF 1310nm FP laser transmitter Single +3.3V Power Supply Monitoring Interface Compliant with SFF-8472 Maximum Power <1W Industrial /Extended/ Commercial operating temperature range: -40°C to 85°C/-5°C to 85°C/-0°C to 70°C Version available RoHS compliant and Lead Free	pair	2	
10	Multimode SFP Transceiver Module, 1.25G SFP Transceiver Module, Dual Fiber LC SFP Transceiver	Up to 1.25Gb/s Data Links Hot-Pluggable Duplex LC connector Up to 1km on 50/125μm MMF 1310nm FP laser transmitter Single +3.3V Power Supply Monitoring Interface Compliant with SFF-8472 Maximum Power <1W Industrial /Extended/ Commercial operating temperature range: -40°C to 85°C/-5°C to 85°C/-0°C to 70°C Version available RoHS compliant and Lead Free	pair	16	





11	10/100/1000M 1.25G Copper SFP Gigabit Ethernet Transceiver	Up to 1.25Gb/s bi-directional data links Hot-pluggable SFP footprint Extended case temperature range (-40°C to +85°C) Fully metallic enclosure for low EMI Low power dissipation Compact RJ-45 connector assembly Detailed product information in EEPROM +3.3V single power supply Access to physical layer IC via 2-wire serial bus 10/100/1000 BASE-T operation in host systems with SGMII interface Compliant with SFP MSA Compliant with IEEE Std 802.3TM-2002 Compliant with FCC 47 CFR Part 15, Class B RoHS Compliant Products	pair	2		
12	Fiber Patch Cord	Duplex Fiber Optic Patch Cord of Multimode SC/UPC - LC/UPC 1m	nos.	20		
13	LAN I/O Socket	Combo Set - RJ45 CAT6 Lan I/O Network Keystone Jack + Gang Box + Face Plate - 1 SET	nos.	200		
15	Supply and Installation of Other Accessories	Supply, Design, Installation, Configuration, Testing, commissioning, Splicing of fiber, User Training, Handtaking Documents, Warranty Supports and Services 1 year	Lamsum			



Grand Total

